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Company Profile

Bay State Bancorp, Inc. was organized in October of 1997 at the direction of the Board of Directors of the
Bay State Federal Savings Bank. The Company was formed for the purpose of acquiring all of the capital
stock to be issued by the Bay State Federal Savings Bank in its conversion from a federally-chartered mutual
savings bank to a federally-chartered stock saving bank. Upon consummation of the Conversion on March 27,
1998, the Company had $295 million in assets and $64 million in capital and then commenced conducting
business as a unitary savings and loan holding company regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision.
As of March 31, 2002, the Company had $529 million in assets and $55 million in capital. The Bank
currently operates six banking offices located in the communities of Brookline, Boston, Dedham, Norwood,

Walpole and Westwood.
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From left to right: Philip R. McNuley, SVP & CLO;
Denise M. Renaghan, EVP & COQ; Michael O.
Gilles, SVP & CFO; John F. Murphy, Chairman,
Pres. & CEQ; Anthony F. Caruso, SVP, Retail.

Back row left to right: Mr. Kent T. Spellman, Director;
Mrs. Denise M. Renaghan, Director; Mr. Robert B.
Cleary, Director; Mr. Richard F. McBride, Director.
Front row left to right: Mr. Leo F. Grace, Director;
Mr. John F. Murphy, Chairman; Mr. Richard F.
Hughes, Director.

Locations:
NORFOLK COUNTY

Executive Office and Main Branch
1299 Beacon Street
Brookline, Massachusetts 02446

Administrative Offices
1309 Beacon Street
Brookline, Massachusetts 02446

DEDHAM Branch Office
Providence Highway (Route 1)

Dedham, Massachusetts 02026
edham, Massachusetts WESTWOOD Branch Office

705 High Street

NORWOOD B h Offi
ranc e Westwood, Massachusetts 02090

61 Lenox Street

N d, M husetts 02062
orwood, Massachusetts SUFFOLK CO v

WALPOLE Branch Office
931 Main Street
Walpole, Massachusetts 02081

BOSTON Branch Office
184 Massachusetts Avenue
Boston, Massachusetts 02115




Financial Highlights

On March 27, 1998, Bay State Bancorp, Inc., became a savings and loan holding company by its acquisition
of Bay State Federal Savings Bank (“the Bank™) in connection with its completion of the conversion of the
Bank from a federally-chartered mutual savings bank to a federally-chartered stock savings bank. Prior to
the conversion, the company had no significant assets, liabilities or operations. Accordingly the results of
operations and other financial data are presented on a consolidated basis, with the exception of selected

operating data for for the year ended March 31, 1998, which is for the Bank.

At March 31  (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA:
Assets $528,715  $491,857 $460,137  $359,404 $295,291
Loans, net 445,547 417,704 393,093 304,372 224,928
Investments 41,320 34,806 32,939 31,875 56,795
Mortgage loans held for sale 813 — — 321 822
Deposits 328,626 273,263 247,344 218,955 209,956
FHLB advances 137,143 158,139 147,527 77,119 20,000
Stockholders’ equity 55,031 53,760 52,630 60,298 63,574
Allowance for loan losses 4,535 4,258 3,915 3,027 2,513
Non-performing loans 109 368 1,224 1,964 2,279
Non-performing assets 109 368 1,286 1,964 2,279

For the Year Ended March 31  (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

SELECTED OPERATING DATA:
Interest income $ 38,049 § 37,220 $ 30,973 $ 23,426 $ 19,249
Interest expense 17,734 21,185 16,355 10,758 10,200

Net interest income 20,315 16,035 14,618 12,668 9,049
Provision for loan losses 312 460 875 617 856

Net interest income after provision
for loan losses 20,003 15,575 13,743 12,051 8,193
Total noninterest income 1,463 833 1,106 431 313
Total noninterest expense 12,094 10,467 10,612 8,706 11,008

Income before income taxes 9,372 5,941 4,237 3,776 (2,502)
Income taxes (benefit) 3,737 2,329 1,482 1,542 (751)

Net income (loss) 5,635 $§ 3,612 2,755 2,234 % (1,751)

PER SHARE DATA:
Book value per share 35.65 32.77 29.06 26.88 § 27.02
Basic earnings 3.58 2.08 1.34 0.97 N/A
Diluted earnings 3.36 2.02 1.34 0.95 N/A
Dividends paid 0.66 0.44 0.28 0.05 N/A




Message to Our Shareholders:

September 11, 2001 is a date none of us will ever forget. Our Country was devastated by the events of that day and its
profound impact on all of us both personally and professionally. The United States of America has emerged a stronger
nation but without a number of our business associates, and, more importantly, friends who are no longer with us as a
result of the cowardly terrorist acts of that day. Our colleagues at Sandler O’Neill & Partners, L.P. and Keefe, Bruyette
& Woods will never see the results of the faith they had in the future of our Company. To all the family and friends of

those so tragically lost on that day, our thoughts and prayers are with you forever.

Last year we reported to you a record year as we completed our third year as a public company. Once again we
are pleased to inform you that we have far surpassed those results and recognized unprecedented performance for
the fourth consecutive year. When we converted to a public company in 1998, we had developed strategic goals as
part of our five year plan. We are proud to report to you that we have achieved
many of those goals one year ahead of schedule. In particular a pivotal benchmark
was to achieve a double-digit return on equity in the fifth year. Therefore, it is with
great pride we announce the return on equity for the fiscal year was 10.50%. This
To(tzflmﬁus'osnf)ts and all the accomplishments we highlight for you in this letter, is indicative of the
effort put forth by all the members of the Bay State team. We thank them for their

loyalty and dedication.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, the Company reported net income of $3.6
miltion, or $3.36 per share, on a fully diluted basis. This represents an increase of
56% over the net income of $3.6 million, and a 66% increase over the $2.02 fully

diluted earnings per share for the prior period, respectively. Total assets grew 7.0%

1 to $529 million compared to $492 million last year.

99 00 01 02 The increase in net income was primarily driven by the improvement in our net
interest margin to 4.28% for the fiscal year, up from 3.55% in the previous year.
During a year of declining interest rates, we were able to increase our margin by
concentrating on real estate lending funded by our increasing deposit base, specifi-
cally the lower costing core accounts. Also, we were quick to protect the yield and
Net Income return on our assets by establishing floor rates on various lending products. We were

(in milions)
able to ensure profitable returns on various lines of business, without sacrificing

= profitability for growth and we were still able to increase our origination volume.

Our asset growth strategy remained on loans and we maintained our focus to diver-
sify the portfolio mix from traditional residential toward multi-family and commer-
cial real estate loans. With this concentration and record origination levels of $201
million during the fiscal year, we were able to further improve our desired asset mix.
At March 31, 2002, residential loans represented 44% of the portfolio compared to

51% last year, while multi-family and commercial real estate loans represented 49%

of the portfolio compared to 44% for the same period last year. As we grow the

portfolio, we continue to adhere to our strict underwriting criteria. The results are




evident as our non-performing loans total only $109,000 representing .02% of the Loans

i i i in milli
loan portfolio which compared favorably to the industry average at the end of (in miltions)

the fiscal year. $30.8
Other

$117.3

We believe our finest accomplishment of the year has been the generation of our

Commercial Real Estate,
deposit growth. During the fiscal period we grew deposits $55 million, or 20%, $199.7 -

Residential

all in core deposits, which represents 64% of total deposits at year-end. This and Home Equity

increase not only allowed us to fund all of our asset growth, but it also enabled us $102.1
. Multi-Famil
to reduce the level of Federal Home Loan Bank advances by $21 million, or 13%. Reusitée:trir;y

The success of the deposit growth was the direct result of the investment we
made in our retail products. Over the past few years we expended considerable
development dollars to enhance our existing product base. We introduced new
products, alternative investment services, small business deposit products, com-
mercial services and delivery channels such as home banking, online bill pay, and ) ]
. . . Diluted Earnings Per Share
debit cards. The Company has also spent a great deal of time and effort developing
a more sales-oriented culture amongst our associates. Our internal motto of “just 4

ask for the business” is a critical key to the success we had in expanding customer 336
3

relationships, and, more importantly, attracting new business.

These sales efforts were aided by the uncertainty of the financial markets as
investors searched for a safe haven to secure their financial assets. Also, we continue
to experience ongoing customer migration from larger commercial banks to more

personal service-oriented community banks like Bay State Federal Bank.

CAPITAL STRATEGY

The Company continued to aggressively manage its capital levels by remaining 99 ‘00 01 '02

an active buyer of the Company stock at levels that were accretive to earnings
per share. During the year, we bought back 144,777 shares at an average price
of $34.08.

The dividend has also remained an important part of the capital management
strategy and a means to increase returns to our loyal shareholders. We have Return on Equity
shared the good fortune of the Company by increasing our dividend twice during 12%
the year to its current level of $0.22 per share for the quarter. The Company has o
a targeted payout ratio of 20% to 30% and will continue to perceive dividends

as a method to reward shareholders and prudently manage capital.

The financial markets have certainly recognized the Company’s outstanding
performance and success as the market price of the stock has increased 46% from
$28.90 at March 31, 2001 to $42.15 at March 31, 2002. While we certainly can’t

predict the future price appreciation of our stock, we certainly appreciate the

recognition and faith you, our shareholders, have shown in our Company and L

management. '99 '00 '01 02
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THE ECONOMY

The economic environment continues to provide challenges for our Company.
Deposits Increasing unemployment rates, while troubling, have not presented any asset quality
(in millions) problems. Current indications are that rates will remain stable for the near future,

unemployment rates continue to rise and other economic indicators seem to be mixed

Demand

$117.4 _

Deposits . . .
and uncertain as to whether the recession has ended and the recovery has begun. While

Certificates of Depost/ we are not predictors of future economic conditions, we have managed and will

$180.6 .

continue to manage the Company prudently during these uncertain economic times.

Core Deposits

LOOKING AHEAD

The strategic plan established upon our conversion to a public company has certainly

proven to be a successful one. Therefore, our future strategic focus will be to continue
along that path and build upon our strengths that have proven to be most successful. We will continue to focus on our core
deposit growth, multi-family and commercial real estate lending and development of new products and services that fit the
needs of our existing and expanding customer base. We will do this by steadily building on our current infrastructure and
emphasizing efficiency through the utilization of technology. We shall remain attentive to the competitive environment
and aggressively market our products and services to the community. The key is customer relationships. It is our objective
to know our customer, be responsive to their needs, make quick and sound decisions, maintain a strong commitment to

our community, and above all, “just as for the business.”

THE BAY STATE FEDERAL SAVINGS CHARITABLE FOUNDATION

The Bay State Federal Savings Charitable Foundation continues to be a source of pride for our Company. In the past fis-
cal period, the Foundation distributed in excess of $400,000 in grants and donations to a variety of local and national
organizations. During the tragedy of September 11th, the Foundation stepped up and created a matching donation pro-
gram and raised almost a quarter of a million dollars for the various charities benefiting the families of the victims. Our
funds were matched through the generous communities we serve. We thank you again for your support and kindness

during this most unfortunate event.

As we look forward, the future of the Foundation looks even brighter as it directly benefits from the increase in stock

price and the resulting appreciation in funds available to distribute to so many worthwhile and deserving charities.

In closing, we thank our stockholders for the confidence displayed in our Directors,
Management and all our Associates; to our customers, we are thankful for the oppor-
tunity to offer the products and services you so well deserve; to our Board of Directors,
we extend deep appreciation for your guidance and support of our endeavors; and,
most importantly, to our Associates, we extend heartfelt gratitude for your passion in

“Asking for the Business.”

JOHN E. MURPHY DENISE M. RENAGHAN

Chairman, President & Executive Vice President &
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer
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Item 1. Business

This Form 10-K contains forward looking statements that are based on assumptions and describe future plans,
strategies, and expectations of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company). These forward looking statements are generally
identified by use of the words "believe," "expect,” "intend,” "anticipate," "estimate,” "project,” or similar expressions.
The Company's ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Factors
which could have a material adverse effect on the operations of the Company and the subsidiaries include, but are not
limited to, changes in interest rates, general economic conditions, legislative/regulatory changes, monetary and fiscal
policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S Treasury and the Federal Reserve Board, the quality and
composition of the loan or investment portfolios, demand for loan products, deposit flows, competition, demand for
financial services in the Company's market area, changes in real estate market values in the Company’s market area and
changes in relevant accounting principles and guidelines. These risks and uncertainties should be considered in
evaluating forward looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. Except as required
by applicable law and regulation, the Company does not undertake—and specifically disclaims any obligation—to
publicly release the result of any revisions which may be made to any forward looking statements to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of the statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

General

The Company was incorporated under Delaware law in October 1997. The Company was formed to acquire
Bay State Federal Savings Bank, Brookline, Massachusetts (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries as part of the Bank's
conversion from the mutual to stock form of organization (the “Conversion”). The Company is a savings and loan
holding company and is subject to regulation by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”). The Company has no
significant assets, other than all of the outstanding shares of the Bank and some investment securities, and no significant
liabilities. Management of the Company and the Bank are substantially similar and the Company neither owns nor leases
any property, but instead utilizes the premises, equipment and furniture of the Bank. Accordingly, the information set
forth in this report, including the consolidated financial statements and related data, relates primarily to the Bank. At
March 31, 2002, the Company had total assets of $528.7 million, total deposits of $328.6 million and total stockholders'
equity of $55.0 million.

The reporting entity is Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Bay State Funding
Corporation and Bay State Federal Savings Bank, and the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries: BSF Service Corporation,
Bay State Federal Savings Securities Corporation and Bay Leaf Securities Corporation. All of the Bank’s subsidiaries and
Bay State Funding Corporation are incorporated under Massachusetts law.

The Bank was organized in 1920 as a state-chartered mutual co-operative bank under the name Coolidge Corner
Co-operative Bank. In 1936, the Bank converted to a federally chartered mutual savings and loan association and
changed its name to Brookline Federal Savings and Loan Association. In 1960, the Bank changed its name to Bay State
Federal Savings and Loan Association and, in 1983, changed its name again to Bay State Federal Savings Bank. In
February 1997, the Bank merged with Union Federal Savings Bank, which at the time of the merger had $38.2 million of
total assets, $35.5 million of deposits and $2.7 million of retained earnings and operated two branches located in Boston
and Westwood, Massachusetts.

The Bank's principal business has been and continues to be attracting retail deposits from the general public in
the areas surrounding its branch offices and investing those deposits, together with funds generated from operations and
borrowings, primarily in adjustable-rate and shorter-term fixed-rate one- to four-family residential mortgage loans,
multi-family and commercial real estate. To a lesser extent, the Bank invests in construction, land and development,
commercial and consumer loans. The Bank originates loans for investment and to a lesser extent loans for sale in the
secondary market, generally retaining the servicing rights on all loans sold. The Bank's revenues are derived principally
from interest on its mortgage loans and, to a lesser extent, interest on its investment and mortgage-backed and mortgage-
related securities and loan servicing income. The Bank's primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest
payments on loans and securities and Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances.




Market Area and Competition

The Bank is headquartered in Brookline, Massachusetts and is a community-oriented savings institution offering
a variety of financial products and services to meet the needs of the communities it serves. The Bank's primary deposit
gathering area is concentrated in the communities surrounding its six full service banking and two administrative offices
located in Brookline, Boston, Dedham, Norwood, Westwood and Walpole, Massachusetts. All of the Bank's branch
offices are located within 20 miles of Brookline. The Bank's primary lending area is significantly broader than its deposit
gathering area and includes all of Massachusetts, with a concentration in the greater Boston metropolitan area.

Brookline, Massachusetts is a fully developed and densely populated town located west of and adjacent to
Boston. The major traffic roadways running through Brookline are heavily traveled and lined with commercial and retail
business operations and Brookline's 2000 census population-was approximately 57,000.

The residents of Brookline are generally comprised of white- and blue-collar workers and college students.
The towns of Dedham, Norwood, Westwood and Walpole are situated southwest of Boston. These towns are primarily
residential communities consisting of single-family residences and are populated by middle- to high-income individuals
employed in the greater Boston metropolitan area.

Over the past few years, the regional economy in the Bank's primary market area, based on economic indicators
such as unemployment rates, residential and commercial real estate values, vacancy rates and household income trends,
has remained fairly steady with a slight decline over the past few years. Small business, technology and service firms,
institutions of higher education and tourism form the backbone of the economy of the greater Boston metropolitan area.

The Bank faces significant competition both in generating loans and in attracting deposits. The Bank's primary
market area is highly competitive and the Bank faces direct competition from a significant number of financial
institutions, many with a state-wide or regional presence and, in some cases, a national presence. Many of these financial
institutions are significantly larger and have greater financial resources than the Bank. The Bank's competition for loans
comes principally from commercial banks, savings banks, credit unions, mortgage brokers, mortgage banking companies
and insurance companies. Its most direct competition for deposits has historically come from other financial institutions.
In addition, the Bank faces significant competition for deposits from non-bank institutions such as brokerage firms and
insurance companies in such instruments as short-term money market funds, corporate and government securities funds,
mutual funds and annuities. The Bank has also experienced significant competition from credit unions, which have a
competitive advantage, as they do not pay state or federal income taxes. This competitive disadvantage has placed
increased pressure on the Bank with respect to its loan and deposit pricing.

The increase of internet accessible financial institutions, which solicit deposits and originate loans on a
nationwide basis, has also increased competition for the Bank’s customers. Additionally, competition has increased as a
result of regulatory actions and legislative changes, most notably the enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999,
These changes have eased and likely will continue to ease restrictions on interstate banking and the entrance into the
financial services market by non-depository and non-traditional financial services providers, including insurance
companies, securities brokerage and underwriting firms and specialty financial services companies such as internet-based
providers.

Lending Activities

Loan Portfolio Composition. The types of loans that the Bank may originate are subject to federal and state
laws and regulations. Interest rates charged by the Bank on loans are affected by the demand for such loans and the
supply of money available for lending purposes and local competitive influences. These factors are, in turn, affected by,
among other things, economic conditions, monetary policies of the federal government, including the Federal Reserve
Board (*FRB”) and legislative tax policies.




The following table sets forth the composition of the Bank's loan portfolio in dollar amounts and as a percentage
of the portfolio at the dates indicated.

At March 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Residential:

One- to four-family ....... $187,801 40.89%  $205,284 47.93%  $201,256 50.32%  $168,786 54.62% $157,240 068.23%
Multi-family ... 102,440 2230 87,040 20.32 78,610  19.65 57,744  18.69 22,411 9.73
Commercial real estate......... 117,341 25.55 98,566  23.01 95,869  23.97 67,800 21.94 35,468 1539
Construction, land and
development(l) ............ 24,361 5.31 17,319 4.04 10,009 2.50 5,494 1.78 7,821 3.39
Total mortgage loans..... 431,943  94.05 408,209  95.30 385,744 9644 299,830 97.03 222,940 96.74
Commercial.....coo.oceevnirennn 11,564 2.52 3,893 0.91 225 0.06 500 0.16 43 0.02
Consumer loans:
Equity lines .........ccoeeeienne. 11,939 2.60 11,819 2.76 9,500 2.37 5,156 1.67 4,028 1.75
Other consumer loans....... 3830 083 4,397 1.03 4,520 1.13 3,535 1.14 3,434 1.49
Total consumer loans .... 15,769 3.43 16,216 3.79 14,020 3.50 8,691 2.81 7,462 3.24
Total loans......ccccocceverininene 459,276  100.00% 428,318 100.00% 399,989 100.00% 309,021 100.00% 230,445 100.00%
Allowance for loan losses ... (4,535) (4,258) (3,915) (3,027) 2,513)

Undisbursed proceeds of
construction and
development loans in

PrOCESS e ivcvererireceenireecnnnne (8,933) (6,154) (2,825) (1,424) (2,534)
Uneamed, income, net . (261) (202) (156) (198) (470)
Loans, net........ccocoooecee 445,547 417,704 393,093 304,372 224,928
Mortgage loans held-for-
SAIE e 813 — — 321 822
Loans, net and mortgage
loans held-for-sale......... $446,360 $417,704 $393,093 $304.693 $225,750

(1) Includes committed but unadvanced loan amounts.




Loan Maturity. The following table shows the remaining contractual maturity of the Bank's loans at
March 31, 2002. The table does not include the effect of future principal prepayments.

At March 31, 2002
One- to Construction
Four- Multi- Commercial and Total
Family (1) Family Real Estate Development (2)  Commercial  Consumer Loans

(In thousands)

Amounts due:

One year or less........... $ 1,669 § 886 $ 1,775 $ 10,720 $2,242 $1,259 § 18,551
After one year:

More than one year

to three years........... 267 760 1,456 10,541 578 223 13,825
More than three years

to five years.............. 1,420 660 564 _ 1,550 347 4,541
More than five years

10 ten years............... 16,307 3,971 14,725 34 86 934 36,057
More than ten years

to twenty years......... 39,126 48,312 39,331 2,800 3,622 486 135,677
More than

twenty years............ 140,951 47,851 59,490 266 1,486 581 250,625

Total due after
ONe year.............. 198,071 101,554 115,566 13,641 9,322 2,571 440,725
Total amount due..... $199.740  $102,440 117,341 $24.361 11,564 3,830 459,276
Less:

ATIOWANCE FOT J0AN J0SSES. ... oot ittt ettt e e e et e e e e e (4,535)
Undisbursed proceeds of construction and development 108NS M PrOCESS. .....ouuiuniiutriiiiet ittt ittt e et e aenne (8,933)
UNEAIMEA ICOMIE, TIEL. ..t v ere et eetteeitee s et e ee et e e ea e ee s neee et e eca e aba e ettt et s et e et et e b et n et as e et et a e e e e e es e e baneesen s 261
T T T S O PSP T OPSPIN $445,547

(1) Includes equity lines.
(2) Includes construction and development loans, which will convert to one- to four-family mortgage loans upon the completion of the
construction.

The following table sets forth at March 31, 2002, the dollar amount of loans contractually due after March 31,
2003 and whether such loans have fixed interest rates or adjustable interest rates.

Due After March 31, 2003
Fixed Adjustable Total
(In thousands)

Mortgage loans:

One- to four-family..........cccoveeeeeenann. $28,942 $157,190 $186,132
Multi-family.......cccevervinnienicnrnnnen 42,810 58,744 101,554
Commercial real estate....................... 34,144 81,422 115,566
Construction and development .......... 5,042 8,599 13,641
Total mortgage loans ...........ccco...... 110,938 305,955 416,893
Commercial 10ans......ccc.ocoeeeveiiiceennnnn, 1,486 7,836 9,322
Consumer loans:
Equity Ines....ccoooovivivvnieiieicens — 11,939 11,939
Other consumer loans........................ 954 1,617 2,571
Total consumer loans...................... 954 13,556 14,510
Total 10ANS ... $113,378 $327,347 $440,725




Origination, Sale and Servicing of Loans. The Bank's mortgage lending activities are conducted primarily
by its loan personnel operating at its six branch offices and two administrative offices and secondarily through a
network of loan correspondents, wholesale loan brokers and other financial institutions approved by the Bank. All
loans originated by the Bank, are underwritten by the Bank pursuant to the Bank's policies and procedures. The
Bank originates both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans, depending on the relative customer demand for such
loans, which is affected by the current and expected future level of interest rates.

Generally, all adjustable-rate mortgage loans (“ARM’s”) originated by the Bank are originated for
investment. While the Bank has from time-to-time, retained fixed-rate one- to four-family loans, it is currently the
policy of the Bank to sell substantially all one- to four-family fixed-rate mortgage loans with scheduled repricing
greater than 15 years. The one- to four-family mortgage loan products currently originated for sale by the Bank
include a variety of loans which conform to the underwriting standards specified by Freddie Mac (“conforming
loans”) and, to a lesser extent, loans which do not conform to Freddie Mac standards due to loan amounts (“jumbo
loans”). All one- to four-family mortgage loans sold by the Bank are sold pursuant to master commitments
negotiated with Freddie Mac and other investors to purchase loans meeting such investors’ defined criteria. The
Bank generally retains the servicing rights on the mortgage loans sold.

At March 31, 2002, the Bank maintained a servicing portfolio consisting of $391.8 million of loans held
for portfolio, net, and $33.0 million of loans serviced for others. Loan servicing includes collecting and remitting
loan payments, accounting for principal and interest, contacting delinquent mortgagors, supervising foreclosures
and property dispositions in the event of unremedied defaults, making certain insurance and tax payments on behalf
of the borrowers and generally administering the loans. Substantially all of the loans currently being serviced for
others are loans which have been sold by the Bank. The gross servicing fee income from loans sold is generaily 24
to 48 basis points of the total balance of the loan serviced.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, the Bank originated and purchased $85.9 million
and $47.6 million one- to four-family loans, respectively, of which $69.6 million, and $45.1 million, respectively,
were retained for the Bank's portfolio. When loans are sold the Bank recognizes, at the time of sale, the cash gain or
loss on the sale of the loans based on the difference between the net cash proceeds received and the carrying value
of the loans sold. On April 1, 1996, the Bank implemented SFAS No. 122 “Accounting for Mortgage Servicing
Rights an amendment of FASB Statement No. 65” (“SFAS No. 122”) pursuant to which the value of servicing
rights may be recognized as an asset of the Bank. In the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair value
of servicing rights under SFAS No. 122 and SFAS No. 125 “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” (“SFAS 125”) was not material and was not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements for those periods.

The Bank purchases whole loans, primarily one- to four-family mortgage loans as well as purchased
participation interests in loans originated by other financial institutions, primarily multi-family and commercial real
estate loans and, at March 31, 2002, had $67.5 million of purchased loans and $15.7 million in loan participation
interests. Loans purchased from correspondent financial institutions are underwritten pursuant to the Bank's policies
and generally closed in the name of the correspondent financial institution and then purchased by the Bank. Total
loans purchased during the fiscal year March 31, 2002 were $43.1 million. o




The following table sets forth the Bank's loan originations, purchases, sales and principal repayments for
the periods indicated:

For the Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Beginning balance, loans, net (1)......cccccecenniiininnn. $417,704 $393,093  3304,372
Loans originated and purchased:
Mortgage loans:
One- to four-family ......oocco oo 85,870 47,597 66,556
Multi-family .....ooeeeriiiecennie e 31,996 17,882 30,346
Commercial real estate ..........ccoceeeeevieeveieccenen. 33,968 14,096 35,866
Construction and development.............ccoeeeeeee. 9,765 13,418 8,031
Total mortgage 1oans............cccvniiviiveieeenenn 161,599 92,993 140,799
CommErCial.......cooiiiiiiviirieiier e 19,402 6,211 —
Consumer:
Equity [INeS.....covveeeriieceineneie e 9,365 5,248 3,686
Other consumer 10ans............ccocovevevieeeveneeenne.. 6,231 4,964 3,453
Total consumer 10ans ..........cccocevevveeecnnrieeceeeninns 15,596 10,212 7,139
Total 08NS ..ot ettt ee e 196,597 109,416 147,938
TOtAL oot 614,301 502,509 452,310
Principal repayments and other, net........c...c.cccceeueneee (151,617) (82,030) (56,996)
Loan charge-offs, net ... (35) (117) 13
Sale of mortgage loans, principal balance.................. (16,289) (2,590) (2,172)
Transfer of mortgage loans to REC ..., — (68) (62)
Loans, net and mortgage loans held-for-sale........... 446,360 417,704 393,093
Mortgage loans held-for-sale .........c.ccoooeeeiiiinniennns (813) — —
Ending balance, loans, net...........ccocoovvivninienncnns $445 547 $417,704  $393,093

(1Y Includes mortgage loans held-for-sale.

One-to Four-Family Lending. The Bank currently offers both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgage
loans with maturities of up to 30 years secured by one- to four-family residences. Most of such loans are located in
the Bank's primary market area. One- to four-family mortgage loan originations are generally obtained through the
Bank's in-house loan representatives, existing or past customers, mortgage brokers and referrals from members of
the Bank's local communities. At March 31, 2002, the Bank's one- to four-family mortgage loans totalled
$187.8 million, or 40.9%, of total loans. Of the one- to four-family mortgage loans outstanding at that date, 15.4%
were fixed-rate mortgage loans and 84.6% were ARM loans.

The Bank currently offers ARM loans with interest rates which adjust every one, three or five years from
the outset of the loan and adjust annually after the initial rate period. At adjustment the interest rates for the Bank's
ARM loans are indexed to either the one, three or five year Constant Maturity Treasury Index. The Bank's ARM
loans generally provide for periodic (not more than 2%) and overall (not more than 6%) caps on the increase or
decrease in the interest rate at any adjustment date and over the life of the loan.




The origination of adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans, as opposed to fixed-rate residential mortgage
loans, helps reduce the Bank's exposure to increases in interest rates. However, adjustable-rate loans generally pose
credit risks not inherent in fixed-rate loans, primarily because as interest rates rise, the underlying payments of the
borrower rise, thereby increasing the potential for default. Periodic and lifetime caps on interest rate increases help
to reduce the risks associated with adjustable-rate loans but also limit the interest rate sensitivity of such loans.

All one- to four-family residential mortgage loans are underwritten according to the Bank's policies and
guidelines. Generally, the Bank originates one- to four-family residential mortgage loans in amounts up to 80% of
the lower of the appraised value or the selling price of the property securing the loan and up to 95% of the appraised
value or selling price with additional credit enhancements such as additional collateral or private mortgage
insurance (“PMI”). Mortgage loans originated by the Bank generally include due-on-sale clauses which provide the
Bank with the contractual right to deem the loan immediately due and payable if the borrower transfers ownership
of the property without the Bank's consent. Due-on-sale clauses are an important means of adjusting the yields on
the Bank's fixed-rate mortgage loan portfolio and the Bank has generally exercised its rights under these clauses.
The Bank requires fire, casualty, title and, in certain cases, flood insurance on all properties securing real estate
loans made by the Bank.

In an effort to provide financing for first-time home buyers, the Bank offers a first-time home buyer loan
program, which offers one- to four-family residential mortgage loans to qualified individuals. These loans are
offered with adjustable- and fixed-rates of interest and terms of up to 30 years. Pursuant to this program, borrowers
receive reduced loan origination fees and closing costs. Such loans must be secured by an owner-occupied
residence. These loans are originated using the same underwriting guidelines as are the Bank’s other one- to four-
family residential mortgage loans.

Multi-Family and Commercial Real Estate Lending. The Bank originates multi-family and commercial
real estate loans that are generally secured by S or more unit apartment buildings and properties used for business
purposes such as office buildings, industrial facilities or retail facilities. The Bank’s multi-family and commercial
real estate underwriting policies provide that such real estate loans may be made in amounts up to 80% of the
appraised value of the property, subject to the Bank’s current loans-to-one-borrower limit, which at March 31, 2002
was $7.0 million. The Bank’s multi-family and commercial real estate loans are generally made with terms up to 25
years and with interest rates that adjust periodically and are generally indexed to the prime rate as reported in The
Wall Street Journal, or the corresponding borrowing rates offered by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston. In
reaching its decision on whether to make a multi-family or commercial real estate loan, the Bank considers the net
operating income of the property, the borrower’s expertise, credit history, the value of the underlying property and
the financial conditions of the Borrower/Guarantor. The Bank generally requires that the properties securing these
real estate loans have debt service coverage ratios (the ratio of earnings before debt service to debt service) of at
least 1.25x utilizing a 25 year amortization schedule. In addition, depending on the perceived environmental risk of
the property an environmental impact survey may be required for multi-family and commercial real estate loans.
Generally, all multi-family and commercial real estate loans made to corporations, partnerships and other business
entities require personal guarantees by the principals. Cn occasion the Bank may not require a personal guarantee
on such loans depending on the creditworthiness of the borrower, equity position and other mitigating
circumstances.

The largest multi-family or commercial real estate loan in the Bank’s portfolio at March 31, 2002 was a
$4.9 million real estate loan secured by a blanket mortgage on five retail/office buildings. This loan was performing
according to its terms as of March 31, 2002,

The Bank also purchases participation interests in multi-family and commercial real estate loans. Most of
these loans are secured by real estate located in the Bank’s primary market area. The Bank will underwrite its
participation interest according to its own underwriting standards. At March 31, 2002, the Bank had $15.7 million
in multi-family and commercial real estate loan participation interests, or 2.4% of total loans.




Loans secured by multi-family and commercial real estate properties generally involve larger principal
amounts and a greater degree of risk than one-tc four-family loans. Additionally, because payments on loans
secured by multi-family and commercial real estate properties are often dependent on the successful operation or
management of the properties, repayment of such loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate
market or the economy. The Bank seeks to minimize these risks through its underwriting standards.

Construction and Development Lending. The Bank originates short-term balloon fixed-and adjustable-
rate construction loans for the development of residential and commercial property. Construction and development
loans are offered primarily to experienced local developers operating in the Bank's market area. The Bank currently
. does not originate loans secured by raw land. The majority of the Bank's construction and development loans are
originated to finance the construction by developers of residential real estate and, to a lesser extent, commercial real
estate properties located in the Bank's primary market area. Construction loans are generally offered with terms of
up to 18 months and may be made in amounts up to 80% of the appraised value of the property on multi-family and
commercial real estate construction and 85% on one- to four-family residential construction. Construction loan
proceeds are disbursed periodically, in increments, as construction progresses and as inspections by the Bank's
lending cofficers warrant.

At March 31, 2002, the Bank's largest construction and development loan was a performing loan with a
$5.5 million outstanding commitment secured by a 43.6 acre parcel approved for 62 townhouse/condominium units
in Southboro, Massachusetts.

The Bank also originates construction to permanent loans to individual borrowers for the construction of
single-family owner-occupied residential properties with permanent financing commitments by the Bank. The
Bank's underwriting standards and procedures for such loans are similar to these applicable for one- to four-family
residential mortgage lending. Proceeds for such loans are disbursed as phases of the construction are completed.
All such loans are originated as one- to four-family interest-only adjustable-rate mortgage loans. Upon completion
of the construction, such loans convert to principal and interest over the remaining term. At March 31, 2002, such
loans totalled $2.3 million, or 9.4%, of the $24.4 million of construction and development loans.

Construction and development financing is generally considered to involve a higher degree of credit risk
than long-term financing on improved, owner-occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan is dependent
largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the property's value at completion of construction or
development compared to the estimated cost (including interest) of construction and other assumptions, including
the estimated time to sell residential properties. If the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be
confronted with a property, when completed, having a value which is insufficient to assure full repayment.

Commerciel Lending. The Bank originates commercial loans in which the proceeds are utilized for
business purposes primarily in its market area to a variety of professionals, sole proprietorships and small
businesses. In most cases commercial loans are secured. Collateral could include, but not limited to, business
assets, real estate, accounts receivable and/or personal assets of the principal/guarantor. The specific loan terms are
dependent on the specific purpose, source of repayment and collateral supporting the loan.

This type of lending is primarily available to existing customers of the Bank in order to enhance the
overall relationship with that customer. The Bank requires personal guarantees on all commercial loans.

The largest commercial loan relationship was a $3.5 million line of credit, of which $1.0 million is
currently outstanding, secured by all business assets and ownership interests of the borrowers company. This loan
was performing according to its original terms at March 31, 2002.

When making commercial business loans, the Bank considers the financial statements of the borrower, the
borrower’s payment history of both corporate and personal debt, the debt service capabilities of the borrower, the
projected cash flows of the business, and viability of the industry in which the customer operates and the value of
the collateral.
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Unlike residential mortgage loans, which generally are made on the basis of the borrower’s ability to make
repayments from his or her employment or other income, and which are secured by real property whose value tends
to be more ascertainable, commercial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the basis of the borrower’s
ability to make repayments from the cash flow of the borrower’s business. As a result, the availability of funds for
the repayment of commercial loans, may depend substantially on the success of the business itself. Further, any
collateral securing such loans may depreciate over time, may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value.

Consumer and Other Lending. Consumer loans consist primarily of equity lines of credit and, to a
significantly lesser extent, secured and unsecured personal loans and new and used automobile loans. Such loans
are generally originated in the Bank’s primary market area and generally are secured by real estate, deposit
accounts, personal property and automobiles. These loans are typically shorter term and generally have higher
interest rates than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Consumer loans are underwritten consistent with
general practices within the industry. Typically on secured loans, such as home equity lines of credit and auto
loans, the total loan-to-value ratio does not exceed 80%. In addition, underwriting guidelines generally require total
monthly debt service to gross monthly income to be less than 40% and the borrower should maintain an acceptable
credit history. Rates and terms are based on the loan type and the collateral supporting the loan.

Loans secured by rapidly depreciable assets such as automobiles or that are unsecured entail greater risks
than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. In such cases, repossessed collateral for a defaulted loan may
not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance, since there is a greater likelihood of
damage, loss or depreciation of the underlying collateral. Further, consumer loan collections on these loans are
dependent on the borrower’s continuing financial stability and, therefore, are more likely to be adversely affected by
job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy. Finally, the application of various federal and state laws, including
federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount which can be recovered on such loans in the
event of a default.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority

The Board of Directors of the Bank establishes the lending policies of the Bank. Such policies provide that
all loans up to $300,000 must be approved by the Bank's Internal Loan Committee. In the event a loan is above
$300,000, it may be approved by either the CEO or President of the Bank. All loans are submitted to the full Board
of Directors or the Bank's Executive Committee for approval or ratification on a monthly basis.

Delinquent Loans, Classified Assets and Real Estate Owned

Delinguencies and Classified Assets. Reports listing all delinquent accounts are generated and reviewed
by management on a monthly basis and the Board of Directors performs a monthly review of all loans or lending
relationships delinquent 90 days or more and all Real Estate Owned (“REQ”). The procedures taken by the Bank
with respect to delinquencies vary depending on the type of loan, length and cause of delinquency and whether the
borrower is habitually delinquent. When a borrower fails to make a required payment on a oan, the Bank takes a
number of steps to have the borrower cure the delinquency and restore the loan to current status. The Bank
generally sends the borrower a written notice of non-payment after the loan is first past due. The Bank's guidelines
provide that telephone, written correspondence and/or face-to-face contact will be attempted to ascertain the reasons
for delinquency and the prospects of repayment. When contact is made with the borrower at any time prior to
foreclosure, the Bank attempts to obtain full payment, work out a repayment schedule with the borrower to avoid
foreclosure and in rare instances, accept a deed in lieu of foreclosure.

In the event payment is not then received or the loan not otherwise satisfied, additional letters and
telephone calls generally are made. If the loan is still not brought current or satisfied and it becomes necessary for
the Bank to take legal action, which typically occurs after a loan is 90 days or more delinquent, the Bank will
commence foreclosure proceedings against any real property that secures the loan. If a foreclosure action is
instituted and the loan is not brought current, paid in full, or refinanced before the foreclosure sale, the property
securing the loan generally is sold at foreclosure and, if purchased by the Bank, becomes real estate owned.
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Federal regulations and the Bank's Asset Classification Policy require that the Bank utilize an internal asset
classification system as a means of reporting problem and potential problem assets.. The Bank has incorporated the
OTS internal asset classifications as a part of its credit monitoring system. The Bank currently classifies problem
and potential problem assets as “Substandard,” “Doubtful” or “Loss” assets. An asset is considered “substandard” if
it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged,
if any. “Substandard” assets include those characterized by the “distinct possibility” that the insured institution will
sustain “some loss” if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Assets classified as-“Doubtful” have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified “Substandard” with
the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make “collection or liquidation in full,” on the basis of
currently existing facts, conditions and values, “highly questionable and improbable.” Assets classified as “Loss”
are those considered “uncollectable” and of such little value that their continuance as assets without the
establishment of a specific loss reserve is not wasranted. Assets which do not currently expose the insured
institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses
are required to be designated “Special Mention.”

When an insured institution classifies one or more assets or portions thereof, as Substandard or Doubtful, it
is required to establish a general valuation allowance for loan losses in an amount deemed prudent by management.
General valuation allowances represent loss allowances which have been established to recognize the inherent risk
associated with lending activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, have not been allocated to particular
problem assets. When an insured institution classifies one or more assets or portions thereof, as “Loss,” it is
required either to establish a specific allowance for losses equal to 100% of the amount of the asset so classified or
to charge off such amount.

A savings institution's determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation
allowances is subject to review by the OTS, which can order the establishment of additional general or specific loss
allowances. The OTS, in conjunction with the other federal banking agencies, has adopted an interagency policy
statement on the allowance for loan and lease losses. The policy statement provides guidance for financial
institutions on both the responsibilities of management for the assessment and establishment of adequate allowances
and guidance for banking agency examiners to use in determining the adequacy of general valuation guidelines.
Generally, the policy statement recommends that institutions have effective systems and controls to identify,
monitor and address asset quality problems; that management has analyzed all significant factors that affect the
collectability of the portfolio in a reasonable manner; and that management has established acceptable allowance
evaluation processes that meet the objectives set forth in the policy statement. Although management believes that,
based on information currently available to it at this time, its allowance for loan losses is adequate, actual losses are
dependent upon future events and, as such, further additions to the level of allowances for loan losses may become
necessary.

The Bank's Classification of Assets Committee reviews and classifies the Bank's assets on a quarterly basis
and the Board of Directors reviews the results of the reports on a quarterly basis. The Bank classifies assets in
accordance with the management guidelines described above. At March 31, 2002, one land loan totaling $3.4
million was classified as Substandard. At March 31, 2002, the Bank had two commercial participation loans,
totaling $1.4 million, designated as Special Mention. At March 31, 2002 no loans were designated as Doubtful or
Loss.
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The following table sets forth the delinquencies in the Bank's loan portfolio as of the dates indicated.

At March 31, 2002 At March 31, 2001
30-89 Days 50 Days or Meore 30-89 Days 90 Days or More
Principal Principal Principal Principal

Number Balance Number Balance Number Balance Number  Balance
of Loans ofLoans ofLoans ofLoans ofLoans ofloans ofLoans of Loans

(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans:

One- to four-family.......cocovncenenin 12 $ 1,371 1 $109 12 $752 2 $ 320
Multi-family ..o — — — — — — — —
Commercial real estate 1 345 — — — — — —
Land.cooooooiveeiiee _1 2,756 fanng o o et — —
Total mortgage loans.......c....c....... 14 4472 1 109 12 752 2 320
Consumer and Commercial loans:
Equity lines.......ccoooniocniicninicnn 2 79 — — 2 285 [ 20
Other consumer 10anSs .........ccocccemnene. 4 33 — — 1 25 2 28
Commercial 1080S......cooeiiiiivinennns 3 600 — — — = — -
Total consumer and commercial
08NS (oviiiv 9 712 — — 3 310 3 48
Total loans 23 5,184 _1 $109 15 1,062 5 $ 368
Delinquent loans to loans, net ............ 1.16% 0.02% 0.25% 0.09%
At March 31, 2000
30-8% Days 90 Days or More
Principal Primcipal
Number Balance Number Balance

of Leans  of Loans of Loans of Loans

(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans:

One- to four-family .........cooeeenne 14 $1,281 5 8§ 731
Multi-family — — — —
Commercial real estate.................. — —_— 2 443
Land ..o p— P — —_ —
Total mortgage loans ................ 14 1,281 7 1,174
Consumer and Commercial loans:
Equity lines.....c....ccooovvniiniiiinnnns 1 150 — —
Other consumer loans . 5 363 3 50
Commercial 10ans ..........ccooveceennee — — — —
Total consumer and commercial
[0ANS 1 6 _513 3 50
Total loans 20 1,794 10 1,224
Delinquent loans to loans, net.......... 0.46% 031%
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Nonperforming Assets and Impaired Loans. The following table sets forth information regarding
nonaccrual loans and REQ. At March 31, 2002, the Bank had no REO in its portfolio. It is the policy of the Bank
to cease accruing interest on loans 90 days or more past due and to recognize interest income only as payments are
made on loans. Interest income that would have been recorded for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, had
non-accruing loans been current according to their original terms, was $40,744 and $260,000, respectively, of which
$40,710 and $249,000 was included in interest income related to these loans. There were no loans that met the
definition of an impaired loan, per SFAS No. 114, at March 31, 2002 and 2001.

The following table sets forth the Bank’s non-performing assets for the periods as indicated.
At March 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:
Mortgage loans:
One- 10 four-family.....c.coireionicicrrccnrcrie $109 $320 $ 731 $ 862 $1,258

Multi-family ..o —_ — — 280 254
Commercial real eState .........ccoooevericveiicnnieecees — — 443 745 739
Construction and development ... _— - — — —
Total mortgage 10ans ... e 109 320 1,174 1,887 2,251
Consumer loans:
EqQUity HINES.....ccovveriiiiiciiiinicecenercee s — 20 — 65 —
Other CONSUMET 108N5 ......ccoiemirireinirinreicere e = _28 50 12 8
Total consumer loans.... e _48 50 71 28
Total nonaccrual loans.. 109 368 1,224 1,964 2,279
Real estate owned, NEt......cooiciiicniicincniece e — — 62 — —
Total nonperforming assets (1)........coivvninininieinnns $109 $368 1,286 $1,964 $2.279
Allowance for loan losses as a percent
OT10@NS (2).veveririirnesrceereicemrr et e s 1.01% 1.01% 0.99% 0.98% 1.10%
Allowance for loans losses as a percent
of nonperforming 10ans (3)..ccccooeiiiiicnini 4,160.55 1,157.07 319.85 154.12 110.27
Nonperforming loans as a percent of
10805 (2)(3) c1viveveeeieeerieiene e evccno et sieearicaes 0.02 0.09 0.31 0.65 1.00
Nonperforming assets as a percent of
0Ll ASSELS (1) eervriirmrercieiricire st crcen et s 0.02 0.07 0.28 0.55 0.77

(1) Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans and REO.

(2) Loans are presented before allowance for loan losses and net of undisbursed proceeds.

(3) Nonperforming loans consist of all loans 90 days or more past due and other loans which have been identified by the Bank as presenting
uncertainty with respect to the collectibility of interest or principal.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is based on management’s estimate of the credit
losses inherent in the loan portfolio and management’s ongoing review of the existing loan portfolio, current market
conditions and the volume and mix of the Bank’s existing loan origination pipeline. To estimaie potential loss
exposure in the Bank’s loan portfolio, management establishes an allocated allowance based upon its review of
internal loan classification reports which identify any loans classified as special mention, substandard, doubtful or
loss and applies an allocation factor based upon its estimated exposure on these specific loans. An unallocated
allowance is maintained based on the remaining portfolio, which is classified into various groups based upon loan
type, underlying collateral, and delinquency status and payment performance history. The loss factor applied to
these loans is based upon management’s review of historical loss experience, current local and national economic
conditions and industry experience and standards. In addition, as part of the regulatory examination process, the
OTS periodically reviews the Company’s allowance for loan losses and may require additional provisions for
estimated losses based upon judgments different from those of management.
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The Company will continue to monitor and modify its allowance for loan losses as conditions dictate. While
management believes the Company’s allowance for loan losses was sufficient to absorb losses inherent in its loan
portfolio at March 31, 2002, no assurances can be given that the Company’s level of allowance for loan losses will
be sufficient to cover future loan losses incurred by the Company or that future adjustments to the allowance for
loan losses will not be necessary if economic conditions and actual loss experience differs from those assumed by
management in determining the current level of the allowance for loan losses.

The economy in the Bank's primary market area suffered significantly in the late 1980s and early 1990s.
These adverse economic conditions negatively affected the Bank's loan loss and delinquency activities and led to a
deterioration of the collateral values of the Bank's loans during those years. In more recent years, the economy and
real estate market in and around the greater Boston metropolitan area has improved which has had a positive impact

on the Bank's loan loss and delinquency activities and the value of properties securing the Bank's loans.

While the level of non-performing loans decreased during fiscal 2002, the Bank added $312,000 to the
allowance in recognition of the level of loan growth and changing portfolio mix. The focus of the lending activities
has changed and is geared more to multi-family, commercial real estate, commercial loans and home equity lines of
credit. These loans are considered to have slightly more risk than residential loans, and as such management
believed it to be a prudent business decision to add to the level of reserves.

The following table sets forth activity in the Bank's allowance for loan losses for the periods as indicated.

For the Year Ended March 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period........cccccoverveeeene $4,258 $3.915 $3,027 $2,513 $1,687
Provision for loan 108S€S.........cooovevvvvcvvrvrererrnenn. 312 460 875 617 856

Charge-offs:
Mortgage loans:

One- to four-family...........ccocvevinicncneciinnins — — — 103 49
Commercial real estate ..........cccocovvreiccrnnnenn, — 124 — — —
Construction and development ..................... — — — — —
Consumer 10ans ........coocvvevivrienenceneneneneenn 49 5 1 — —
Total charge-offs .....cc.ccccvnivvncinininine, 49 129 1 103 49
RECOVETIES ..ovrvreiiceirerecieccere e 14 12 14 — 19
Balance at end of period.........ccccocerireininennenns $4,535 $4.258 $3,915 $3,027 $2,513

Ratio of net charge-offs during the
period to average loans outstanding

during the period ........c.covvvvvevverennenieriereees 0.01% 0.03% 0.00% 003% __001%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent

0F10anS (1)eeiiiirirccerrre e 1.01% 1.01% 0.99% 0.98% 1.10%
Allowance for loans losses as a percent of

nonperforming 10ans (2)......cc.ccocveovnvreinrerenen. 4,160.55% 1,157.07%  319.85%  154.12%  110.27%

(1) Loans are presented before deducting the aliowance for loan losses and net of undisbursed proceeds.
(2) Nonperforming loans consist of all loans 90 days or more past due and other loans which have been identified by the Bank as presenting
uncertainty with respect to the collectibility of interest or principal.
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The following table sets forth the Bank's percentage of allowance for loan losses to total allowance for loan
losses and the percent of loans to total loans in each of the categories listed at the dates indicated.

At March 31,
2002 2001 2000
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
Percent of in Each Percent of im Each Percentof im Each
Allowance Category Allowance Category Allowance Category
to Total to Total to Total to Total to Total to Total
Amount  Allowance Loans Amount Allowance Loans Amount Allowance Lozans
(Dollars in thousands)
Multi-family and One-to four-
family loans........c.....c.... $1,778 39.21% 68.50% $1,752 41.15% 72.29% $1,918 48.99% 72.47%
Commercial real estate ........... 2,312 50.98 25.55 2,005 47.09 23.01 1,549  39.56 23.97
4,090 90.19 94.05 3,757 88.24 95.30 3,467 88.55 96.44
91 2.00 2.52 78 1.83 0.91 — — 0.06
81 1.79 343 127 2.98 3.79 124 3.17 3.50
273 6.02 — 296 6.95 — 324 8.28 —
Total allowance for loan
LOSSES .covovecveeriicenen 4,535 100.00%  100.00% 4,258  100.00%  100.00% 3915 100.00%  100.00%
At March 31,
1999 1998
Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans
Percent of in Each Percent of  in Each
Allowance Category Allowance  Category
to Total to Total to Total to Total
Amount Allowance Loans Amount Allowance  Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Multi-family and One-to four- .
family loans...........ccocvvcenrne $1,221 40.34% 75.09% $1,131 45.01% 81.35%
Commercial real estate .........occeev e 1,314 43.41 21.94 955 38.00 15.39
Total oot 2,535 83.75 97.03 2,086 83.01 96.74
Commercial loans. —_ — 0.16 — — 0.02
Consumer 1oans........cccoooiveervcennne 124 4.10 2.81 50 1.99 3.24
Unallocated .....coovriianivencen e 368 12.15 — 377 15.00 —
Total allowance for loan losses...... $3,027 100.00%  100.00% $2,513 100.00% 100.00%

Real Estate Owned. At March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2001 the Bank had no REQ. When the Bank
acquires property through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, it is initially recorded at the lower of the
recorded investment in the corresponding loan or the fair value of the related assets at the date of foreclosure, less
costs to sell. Thereafter, if there is a further deterioration in value, the Bank provides for a specific valuation
allowance and charges operations for the diminution in value. It is the policy of the Bank to have obtained an
appraisal on all real estate subject to foreclosure proceedings prior to the time of foreclosure. It is the Bank's policy
to require appraisals on a periodic basis on foreclosed properties and conduct inspections on foreclosed properties.
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Investment Activities

Federally chartered savings institutions have the authority to invest in various types of liquid assets,
including United States Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies, certificates of deposit of insured
banks and savings institutions, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements and federal funds. Subject to various
restrictions, federally chartered savings institutions may also invest their assets in commercial paper,
investment-grade corporate debt securities and mutual funds whose assets conform to the investments that a
federally chartered savings institution is otherwise authorized to make directly. Historically, the Bank has
maintained liquid assets at a level considered adequate to meet its normal daily activities.

The investment policy of the Bank, as approved by the Board of Directors, requires management to
maintain adequate liquidity and a high quality investment portfolio. The Bank primarily utilizes investments in
securities for liquidity management and as a method of deploying excess funds not utilized for investment in loans.
The Bank is required by SFAS No. 115 to categorize its securities as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or held for
trading. Generally accepted accounting principles require that securities be categorized as either “held to maturity,”
“trading securities” or “available for sale,” based on management’s intent as to the ultimate disposition of each
security. Debt securities may be classified as “held to maturity” and reported in financial statements at amortized
cost only if the reporting entity has the positive intent and ability to hold those securities to maturity. Securities that
might be sold in response to changes in market interest rates, changes in the security’s prepayment risk, increases in
loan demand, or other similar factors cannot be classified as “held to maturity.” Debt and equity securities held for
current resale are classified as “trading securities.” These securities are reported at fair value, and unrealized gains
and losses on the securities would be included in earnings. The Bank does not currently use or maintain a trading
account. Debt and equity securities not classified as either “held to maturity” or “trading securities” are classified as
“available for sale.” These securities are reported at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses on the securities are
excluded from earnings and reported, net of deferred taxes, as a separate component of equity.

Short-term investments primarily consist of overmnight deposits at the FHLB and the Co-operative Central
Bank Liquidity Fund. The Liquidity Fund is a no-load diversified, open-ended money market investment fund
whose objective is maximum current income consistent with liquidity and the preservation of capital. The Fund is
designed solely for use by eligible investors as an economical and convenient way to make liquid investments.

As of March 31, 2002, $27.7 million, or 5.2% of total assets, of the securities portfolio consisted of
investment securities, primarily marketable equity securities, primarily consisting of mutual fund securities,
common stocks, preferred stocks and trust preferred stocks, and corporate bonds and notes. The weighted average
maturity of the Bank's fixed rate investment securities portfolio, excluding any equity securities, was 60 months as
of March 31, 2002.

At March 31, 2002, the Bank had $7.3 million of mortgage-backed and mortgage-related securities, or
1.4% of total assets, all of which were backed by fixed-rate mortgages and which consisted of mortgage-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations insured or issued by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.
At March 31, 2002, the weighted average estimated maturity of its mortgage-backed and mortgage-related securities
portfolio was 29 months. Investments in mortgage-backed and mortgage-related securities involve a rigsk that actual
prepayments will be greater than estimated prepayments over the life of the security, which may require adjustments
to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any discount relating to such instruments thereby changing the
net yield on such securities. There is also reinvestment risk associated with the cash flows from such securities or in
the event such securities are redeemed by the issuer. In addition, the market value of such securities may be
adversely affected by changes in interest rates.

While investments in privately issued mortgage-backed securities generally bear yields higher than
mortgage-backed securities insured by government sponsored agencies, they involve a greater degree of risk than
those issued by government sponsored agencies, as such securities are not insured or guaranteed by such
government sponsored agencies.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the amortized cost and fair value of the Bank's
securities at the dates indicated.

At Mareh 31,
2002 2001 2000
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Yalue Cest Value Cost Value
(In thousznds)
Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed and mortgage-
related securities ............. $ 177 $ 177 $ 336 $ 345 § 527 $ 535
Total held-to-madturity 177 177 336 345 527 535
Available-for-sale securities:
Marketable equity securities............. 8,045 9,316 7,496 8,654 9,840 9,049
Mortgage-backed securities .................. 6,977 7,087 14,141 14,314 16,937 16,476
Trust preferred equity securities and stock 10,599 10,754 7,559 7,510 2,501 1,916
Corporate bonds and notes.................... 6,454 6,240 1,452 1,408 495 462
Preferred stocks .....vvvviveiernienene 1,500 1,407 1,500 1,467 1,500 1,342
Government agency securities - - 1,000 1,003 2,607 2,567
Total available-for-sale............. 33,575 34,804 33,148 34,356 33,880 31,812
Total SECUTItES......cvevveveereereeeceaene $33,752 $34.981 $33,484 $34,701 $34,407 $32,347
As of March 31, 2002 the aggregate amortized cost basis and fair value of securities, which total is
included in the marketable equity securities stated in the above table, of issuers which exceeded 10% of
stockholders’ equity were:
Amortized
Issuer Cost Basis Fair Value
(In thousands)
Asset Management Fund $7,725 $7,708
The following table sets forth certain information regarding the amortized cost and fair values of the Bank's
mortgage-backed and mortgage-related securities.
At March 31,
2002 2001 2000
Percent Percent Percent
Amortized of Fair Amortized of Fair Amortized of Fair
Cost Total (1} Value Cost Total (1) Value Cost - Total (1) Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed and mortgage-
related securities:
Ginnie Mae ......ccoeevnvienniiicenns $ 127 1.78% $ 127 $ 181 1.25% $ 187 $ 239 1.36% 3 247
Freddie Mac........ccoooivmeinnicene. 50 0.70 50 73 0.50 76 97 0.56 99
CMOS e 6,977 97.52 7,087 14,223 98.25 14,396 17,128 98.08 16,665
Total mortgage-backed and
mortgage-related securities......... $7.154 100.00% $7,264 $14.477 100.00% $14,659 $17,404 100.00% $17,011

(1) Based on amortized cost.
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost of the Bank's mortgage-backed and mortgage-related
securities activities for the periods indicated.

For the Year Ended Marchv 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Beginning balance ........ccc.oevcnene. $14.477 $17,464 $6,327
Principal repayments (7,351) (3,033) (4,741)
Purchases ......ccoceevieiiiiviiiciiiinnnen — — 15,830
Accretion of discounts and

amortization of premiums, net.. 28 46 48

Ending balance ..........ccocciniinnnn $7.154 314,477 $17.464

The table below sets forth certain information regarding the amortized cost, weighted average yields and
contractual maturities of the Bank's debt securities.

At March 31, 2002

More than One More than Five
Year Years More than Ten
One Year or Less to Five Years to Ten Years Years Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield

(Dollars in thousands)

Debt securities:

Investment securities (1)........ — — - = $5,000 7.50% $ 1,454 2.83% $ 6,454 06.45%
Fixed-rate:
Ginnie Mae.....c.c.ccoooeveveenns — — 38 8.00 89 8.00 — — 127 8.00
Freddie Mac...........coovienne — — —_ = 50 8.57 — — 50 8.57
[0/ (o LY — — [ — — — 6977 6.18 6,977 6.18
Total debt securities.......c.......... $— — $38 8.00% $5,139 7.52% $8.431 5.60% $13.608 6.33%

(1) Consists of government agency obligations, and corporate bonds and notes.
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Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds

General. Deposits, loan repayments and prepayments, proceeds from the sale of loans, cash flows
generated from operations and FHLB advances are the primary sources of the Bank's funds for use in lending,
investing and for other general purposes.

Deposits. The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and terms. The
Bank's deposits consist of business and consumer checking, money market, savings, NOW and certificate accounts.
For the year ended March 31, 2002, the average balance of core deposits represented 58.5% of total average
deposits. The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in money market
rates, prevailing interest rates, competition and opportunities resulting from bank mergers and acquisitions in the
Bank’s primary market area. The Bank's deposits are obtained predominantly from the areas surrounding its branch
offices. The Bank has historically relied primarily on providing a higher level of customer service and
long-standing relationships with customers to attract and retain these deposits; however, market interest rates and
rates offered by competing financial institutions significantly affect the Bank's ability to attract and retain deposits.
The Bank uses traditional means of advertising its deposit products, including print media and generally does not
solicit deposits from outside its market area. While the Bank generally does not actively solicit certificate accounts
in excess of $100,000 or use brokers to obtain deposits, the Bank may solicit, from time-to-time, such deposits
depending upon market conditions and funding needs. The Bank offers negotiated rates on some of its certificate
accounts. At March 31, 2002, $124.0 million, or 41.5% of total average deposits, were certificate accounts with a
weighted average remaining maturity of 11 months.

For the year ended March 31, 2002, certificate accounts in excess of $100,000 decreased $3.4 million, or
11.0%, from $30.9 million to $27.5 million. The decrease in certificate accounts over $100,000 was due in part to
our competitively priced short term and liquid deposit products, coupled with the maturity of previously offered
special rate CD promotions. The decrease in certificate accounts resulted in a reduction in the average cost of
certificates of deposits from 5.71% in fiscal year 2001 to 4.92% for fiscal year 2002. Decreases in certificate
accounts under $100,000, which tend to be more sensitive to movements in market interest rates than core deposits,
may result in a less stable deposit base for the Bank. Consequently, if a greater percentage of the Bank’s deposit
portfolio was comprised of core deposits, increases in market interest rates could result in further increases in the
Bank’s cost of deposit funds, thus adversely affecting net interest income in future periods.

The following table presents the deposit activity of the Bank for the periods indicated:

For the Year Ended March 31,
2002 2001 2000
{In thousands)

Net increase in deposits ....oeoceeveeeriivvvrevne s $45,320 $14,633 $19,505
Interest credited on deposit accounts................... 10,043 11,286 8,884
Total increase in deposit accounts.........c.....c.o..... $55,363 $25,919 $28,389

At March 31, 2002, the Bank had $27.5 million in certificate accounts in amounts of $100,000 or more
maturing as follows:

Weighted
Average
Maturity Period Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
3monthsorless....................... $9.867 3.38%
Over 3 through 6 months............ 4,437 3.81
Over 6 through 12 months.......... 7,249 3.52
Over 12 months...............ooene 5,983 478
Total.....oooviiii $27,536 3.79%
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the Bank’s average deposit accounts for the periods
indicated and the weighted average interest rates on each category of deposits presented. Averages for the periods
presented utilize month-end balances:

For the Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

Percent Percent Percent

of Total Weighted of Total Weighted of Total  Weighted
Average  Average Average Average Average  Average Average Average  Average
Balance Deposits Rate Balance Deposits Rate Balance Deposits Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Demand deposits .........ceeviiieenns § 14,625 489 % —% $ 8332 3.20% —% $ 4212 1.88% —%
Money market accounts................ 103,627 34,67 3.22 69,371 26.68 4.37 58,644 20.16 3.88
Regular savings accounts ............. 28,051 9.38 1.40 26,702 10.27 | 2.00 25,484 11.37 2.01
NOW accounts 28,590 9.57 0.71 24,454 941 0.92 22,993  10.26 1.11
TOtAl v 174,893 58.51 245 128,859 49.56 3.15 111,333 49.67 2.84
Certificate accounts (1)(2):
Less than 6 months......coo.ccoeene.. 68,729 22.99 493 64,967 24.99 5.55 46,614 20.80 5.01
Over 6 through 12 months......... 32,094 10.74 4.82 38,776 14.92 5.88 44,260 19.75 5.15
Over 12 through
36 MONthS ..oee e 20,353 6.81 498 21,601 8.31 5.63 18,655 8.32 5.51
Over 36 months ............ . 2,833 0.95 5.53 5,767 222 6.80 3,269 146 5.98
Total certificate accounts.. . 124,009 41.49 4.92 131,111 50.44 5.71 112,798 50.33 5.18
Total average deposits ............... $298,902 100.00 %  3.53% $259.970  100.00% 4.49% $224,131 100.00% 4.04%

(1) Based on remaining maturity of certificates.
(2) Includes retirement accounts such as IRA and Keogh accounts.

The following table presents by various rate categories, the amount of certificate accounts outstanding at
the dates indicated and the periods to maturity of the certificate accounts outstanding at March 31, 2002.

Period to maturity from March 31, 2002

Less One Two Three Four

than to to to to

One Two Three Four Five

Year Years Years Years Years At March 31,

2002 2001 2000
Certificate accounts:
010 4.00%...ccocviemrinnnnn. $54,301 $10,663 $1,262 $ — $ 34 % 66260 $ 186 $ 577
4.01% to 5.00% . 22,579 3,785 1,044 1,948 1,385 30,741 21,774 34,969
5.01% to0 6.00% .... 7,382 1,409 990 109 1,119 11,009 46,632 69,692
6.01% to 7.00% .... 4,281 984 2,342 1,542 — 9,149 56,627 14,016
7.01% to 8.00% . 204 — — — — 204 289 1,404
Total....coovivieciciniiinns $88.747 $16,841 $5.638 $3,599 2,538 $117,363 $125,508 $120.658

21




Borrowings. As part of its operating strategy, the Bank utilizes advances from the FHLB as an alternative
to retail deposits to fund its operations. The Bank has emphasized the utilization of FHLB borrowings to further
fund its asset growth. By utilizing FHLB advances, which possess varying stated maturities, the Bank can meet its
liquidity needs without otherwise being dependent upon retail deposits and revising its deposit rates to attract retail
deposits, which have no stated maturities (except for certificates of deposit), which are interest rate sensitive and
which are subject to withdrawal from the Bank at any time. These FHLB advances are collateralized primarily by
mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities held by the Bank and secondarily by the Bank's investment in
capital stock of the FHLB. FHLB advances are made pursuant to several different credit programs, each of which
has its own interest rate and range of maturities. The maximum amount that the FHLB will advance to member
institutions, including the Bank, fluctuates from time-to-time in accordance with the policies of the FHLB. At
March 31, 2002, the Bank had $137.1 million in cutstanding advances from the FHLB and $2.9 million in other
borrowings, as compared to $158.1 million and $2.0 million at March 31, 2001, respectively.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Bank's borrowed funds at or for the pericds
ended on the dates indicated:

At or For the Year Ended March 31,
2002 2901 2000
(Dollars in thousands)

FHLB advances:

Average balance outstanding during the period .................. $142.,480 $155,380 $131,015
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end
during the period ........cccoovevcviinnn e e 155,157 163,749 156,027
Balance outstanding at end of period ................. v 137,143 158,139 147,527
Weighted average interest rate during the period................ 535% 6.25% 5.40%
Weighted average interest rate at end of period .................. 4.51% 5.94% 5.68%
Other borrowed funds:
Average balance outstanding during the period .................. $ 2,000 $ 3,026 $ 7,035
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end
during the Period .......cccecvrverrieerevicerr e 2,000 8,130 15,130
Balance outstanding at end of period ..........ccecvviiiiiniece 2,902 2,025 8,137
Weighted average interest rate during the period................ 3.50% 6.11% 5.63%
Weighted average interest rate at end of period .................. 1.85% 5.50% 5.47%
Personnel

As of March 31, 2002, the Bank had 81 full-time employees and 28 part-time employees. The employees
are not represented by a collective bargaining unit and the Bank considers its relationship with its employees to be
good.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
General

As a savings and loan holding company, the Company is required by federal law to file reports with, and
otherwise comply with, the rules and regulations of the OTS. The Bank is subject to extensive regulation,
examination and supervision by the OTS, as its primary federal regulator, and the FDIC, as the deposit insurer. The
Bank is a2 member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System and its deposit accounts are insured up to applicable
limits by the Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIF”) managed by the FDIC. The Bank must file reports with
the OTS and the FDIC concerning its activities and financial condition in addition to obtaining regulatory approvals
prior to entering into certain transactions such as mergers with, or acquisitions of, other savings institutions. The
OTS and/or the FDIC conduct periodic examinations to test the Bank's safety and soundness and compliance with
various regulatory requirements.
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This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of activities in which an institution can
engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and depositors. The regulatory structure
also gives the regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement
activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to the classification of assets and the
establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes.

Any change in such regulatory requirements and policies, whether by the OTS, the FDIC or the Congress,
could have a material adverse impact on the Company, the Bank and their operations. - Certain of the regulatory
requirements applicable to the Bank and to the Company are referred to below or elsewhere herein. The description
of statutory provisions and regulations applicable to savings institutions and their holding companies set forth in this
Form 10-K does not purport to be a complete description of such statutes and regulations and their effects on the
Bank and the Company.

Holding Company Regulation

The Company is a nondiversified unitary savings and loan holding company within the meaning of federal
law. Under prior law, a unitary savings and loan holding company, such as the Company was not generally
restricted as to the types of business activities in which it may engage, provided that the Bank continued to be a
qualified thrift lender. See "Federal Savings Institution Regulation - QTL Test." The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of
1999 provides that no company may acquire control of a savings association after May 4, 1999 unless it engages
only in the financial activities permitted for financial holding companies under the law or for multiple savings and
loan holding companies as described below. Further, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act specifies that existing savings
and loan holding companies may only engage in such activities. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, however,
grandfathered the unrestricted authority for activities with respect to unitary savings and loan holding companies
existing prior to May 4, 1999, such as the Company, so long as the Bank continues to comply with the QTL Test.
Upon any non-supervisory acquisition by the Company of another savings institution or savings bank that meets the
qualified thrift lender test and is deemed to be a savings institution by the OTS, the Company would become a
multiple savings and loan holding company (if the acquired institution is held as a separate subsidiary) and would
generally be limited to activities permissible for financial holding companies, and certain activities authorized by
OTS regulation.

A savings and loan holding company is prohibited from, directly or indirectly, acquiring more than 5% of
the voting stock of another savings institution or savings and loan holding company without prior written approval
of the OTS and from acquiring or retaining control of a depository institution that is not insured by the FDIC. In
evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings institutions, the OTS considers the financial and
managerial resources and future prospects of the company and institution involved, the effect of the acquisition on
the risk to the deposit insurance funds, the convenience and needs of the community and competitive factors.

The OTS may not approve any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings and loan holding
company controlling savings institutions in more than one state, subject to two exceptions: (i) the approval of
interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies and (ii) the acquisition of a savings
institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically permit such
acquisitions. The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company
acquisitions.

Although savings and loan holding companies are not subject to specific capital requirements or specific
restrictions on the payment of dividends or other capital distributions, federal regulations do prescribe such
restrictions on subsidiary savings institutions as described below. The Bank must notify the OTS 30 days before
declaring any dividend to the Company.

In addition, the financial impact of a holding company on its subsidiary institution is a matter that is
evaluated by the OTS and the agency has authority to order cessation of activities or divestiture of subsidiaries
deemed to pose a threat to the safety and soundness of the institution.
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Federal Savings Institution Regulation

Business Activities. The activities of federal savings institutions are governed by federal law and
regulations. These laws and regulations delineate the nature and extent of the activities in which federal
associations may engage. In particular, many types of lending authority for federal association, e.g., commercial,
non-residential real property loans and consumer loans, are limited to a specified percentage of the institution’s
capital or assets. :

Capital Requirements. The CTS capital regulations require savings institutions to meet three minimum
capital standards: a 1.5% tangible capital ratio, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest rating
on the CAMELS rating system), and an 8% risk-based capital ratic. In addition, the prompt corrective action
standards discussed below also establish, in effect, a minimum 2% tangible capital standard, a 4% leverage ratio
(3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS financial institution rating system), and, together
with the risk-based capital standard itself, a 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital standard. The OTS regulations also require
that, in meeting the tangible, leverage and risk-based capital standards, institutions must generally deduct
investments in and loans to subsidiaries engaged in activities as principal that are not permissible for a national
bank.

The risk-based capital standard for savings institutions requires the maintenance of Tier 1 (core) and total
capital (which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and 8%,
respectively. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet
assets, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the OTS capital regulation based on the
risks believed inherent in the type of asset. Core (Tier 1) capital is defined as common stockholders' equity
(including retained earnings), certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, and minority
interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries less intangibles other than certain mortgage servicing rights
and credit card relationships. The components of supplementary capital currently include cumulative preferred
stock, long-term perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, subordinated debt and intermediate
preferred stock, the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and
up to 45% of unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair values. Cverall,
the amount of supplementary capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.

The capital regulations also incorporated an interest rate risk component. Savings institutions with “above
normal” interest rate risk exposure were potentially subject to a deduction from total capital for purposes of
calculating their risk-based capital requirements. However, the OTS deferred implementation of the interest rate
risk component and recently removed it from its capital regulation. At March 31, 2002, the Bank met each of its
capital requirements. The OTS also has authority to establish individual capital requirements for specific
institutions if deemed necessary by the institution’s condition or risk profile.

The following table presents the Bank's capital position at March 31, 2002.

Capital
Actual Regquired Excess Actual Required
Capital Capital Amount Percent Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
Tangible ....c.cccceeerin. $41,940 $ 7,846 $34,094 8.02% 1.50%
Core (Leverage) ........... $41,940 $20,923 $21,017 8.02% 4.00%
Risk-based......c...c...c...... 347,073 $32,137 $14,936 11.72% 8.00%
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Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. The OTS is required to take certain supervisory actions against
undercapitalized institutions, the severity of which depends upon the institution's degree of undercapitalization.
Generally, a savings institution that has a ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets of less than 8%, a ratio of Tier
1 (core) capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 4% or a ratio of core capital to total assets of less than 4% (3% or
less for institutions with the highest examination rating) is considered to be “undercapitalized.” A savings
institution that has a total risk-based capital ratio less than 6%, a Tier 1 capital ratio of less than 3% or a leverage
ratio that is less than 3% is considered to be “significantly undercapitalized” and a savings institution that has a
tangible capital to assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is deemed to be “critically undercapitalized.” Subject to a
narrow exception, the OTS is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for an institution that is “critically
undercapitalized.” The regulation also provides that a capital restoration plan must be filed with the OTS within 45
days of the date a savings institution receives notice that it is “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” or
“critically undercapitalized.” Compliance with the plan must be guaranteed by any parent holding company. In
addition, numerous mandatory supervisory actions become immediately applicable to an undercapitalized
institution, including, but not limited to, increased monitoring by regulators and restrictions on growth, capital
distributions and expansion. The OTS could also take any one of a number of discretionary supervisory actions,
including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior executive officers and directors.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Deposits of the Bank are presently insured by the SAIF. The FDIC
maintains a risk-based assessment system by which institutions are assigned to one of three categories based on their
capitalization and one of three subcategories based on examination ratings and other supervisory information. An
institution's assessment rate depends upon the categories to which it is assigned. Assessment rates for SAIF member
institutions are determined semiannually by the FDIC and currently range from zero basis points healthiest
institutions to 27 basis points of assessable deposits for the for the riskiest.

In addition to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds
issued in the late 1980s by the Financing Corporation (“FICC”) to recapitalize the predecessor to the SAIF.

The Bank's assessment rate for fiscal 2002 ranged from 1.76 to 1.90 basis points and the premium paid for
this period was $54,096, which represents payment toward the FICO bonds. The FDIC has the authority to increase
insurance assessments. A significant increase in SAIF Insurance premiums would likely have an adverse effect on
the operating expenses and results of the operations of the Bank. Management cannot predict what insurance
assessment rates will be in the future.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the institution has engaged in
unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any
applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC or the OTS. The management of the Bank
does not know of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Loans to One Borrower. Federal law provides that savings institutions are generally subject to the limits
on loans to one borrower applicable to national banks. A savings institution may not make a loan or extend credit to
a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired capital and surplus. An additional amount
may be lent, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if secured by specified readily-marketable collateral.
At March 31, 2002, the Bank's limit on loans to one borrower was $7.0 million, and the Bank's largest aggregate
outstanding balance of loans to one borrower was $6.7 million.

QTL Test. The HCLA requires savings institutions to meet a qualified thrift lender test. Under the test, a
savings association is required to either qualify as a “domestic building and loan association” under the Internal
Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specified liquid assets up to
20% of total assets; (ii) intangibles, including goodwill; and (iii} the value of property used to conduct business) in
certain “qualified thrift investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments, including certain
mortgage-backed securities) in at least 9 months out of each 12 month period.
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A savings institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to certain operating restrictions and
may be required to convert to a bank charter. As of March 31, 2002, the Bank maintained 69.1% of its portfolio
assets in qualified thrift investments and, therefore, met the qualified thrift lender test. Recent legislation has
expanded the extent to which education loans, credit card loans and small business loans may be considered
“qualified thrift investments.”

Limitation on Capital Distributions. OTS regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions by a
savings institution, including cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares and payments to shareholders of
another institution in a cash-out merger. An application and the approval of the OTS is required prior to any capital
distribution if the institution does not meet the criteria for “expedited treatment” of applications under OTS
regulations (i.e., generally, examination ratings in the twc top categories), the total capital distributions for the
calendar year exceed net income for that year plus the amount of retained net income for the preceding two years,
the institution would be undercapitalized following the distribution or the distribution would otherwise be contrary
to a statute, regulation or agreement with OTS. If an application is not required, the institution must still provide
prior notice to OTS of the capital distribution if, like the Bank, it is a subsidiary of a holding company. In the event
the Bank's capital fell below its regulatory requirements or the OTS notified it that it was in need of more than
normal supervision, the Bank's ability to make capital distributions could be restricted. In addition, the OTS could
prohibit a proposed capital distribution by any institution, which would otherwise be permitted by the regulation, if
the OTS determines that such distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice.

Assessments. Savings institutions are required to pay assessments to the OTS to fund the agency's
operations. The general assessments, paid on a semi-annual basis, are computed based upon the savings institution's
total assets, including consolidated subsidiaries, as reported in the Bank's latest quarterly thrift financial report. The
assessments paid by the Bank for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 totaled $104,855.

Transactions with Related Parties. The Bank's authority to engage in transactions with “affiliates” (e.g.,
any company that controls or is under common control with an institution, including the Company and its
non-savings institution subsidiaries) is limited by federal law. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with
any individual affiliate is limited to 10% of the capital and surplus of the savings institution. The aggregate amount
of covered transactions with all affiliates is limited to 20% of the savings institution's capital and surplus. Certain
transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral in an amount and of a type described in federal
law.

The purchase of low quality assets from affiliates is generally prohibited. Transactions with affiliates must
be on terms and under circumstances, that are at least as favorable to the institution as those prevailing at the time
for comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies. In addition, savings institutions are prohibited from
lending to any affiliate that is engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies and no
savings institution may purchase the securities of any affiliate other than a subsidiary.

The Bank's authority to extend credit to executive officers, directors and 10% shareholders (“insiders”), as
well as entities such persons control, is also governed by federal law. Such loans are required to be made on terms
substantially the same as those offered to unaffiliated individuals and not involve more than the normal risk of
repayment. There is an exception for loans made pursuant to a benefit or compensation program that is widely
available to all employees of the institution and does not give preference to insiders over other employees. The law
limits both the individual and aggregate amount of loans the Bank may make to insiders based, in part, on the
Bank's capital position and requires certain board approval procedures to be followed.

Enforcement. The OTS has primary enforcement responsibility over savings institutions and has the
authority to bring actions against the institution and all institution-affiliated parties, including stockholders, and any
attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an
adverse effect on an insured institution.
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Formal enforcement action may range from the issuance of a capital directive or cease and desist order to
removal of officers and/or directors to institution of receivership, conservatorship or termination of deposit
insurance. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations and can amount to $25,000 per day, or even $1 million
per day in especially egregious cases. The FDIC has the authority to recommend to the Director of the OTS that
enforcement action to be taken with respect to a particular savings institution. If action is not taken by the Director,
the FDIC has authority to take such action under certain circumstances. Federal law also establishes criminal
penalties for certain violations.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The federal banking agencies have adopted Interagency Guidelines
prescribing Standards for Safety and Soundness. The guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that
the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital
becomes impaired. If the OTS determines that a savings institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the
guidelines, the OTS may require the institution to submit an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the
standard.

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which consists of 12 regional Federal
Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides a central credit facility primarily for member
institutions. The Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank, is required to acquire and hold shares of
capital stock in that Federal Home Loan Bank in an amount at least equal to 1.0% of the aggregate principal amount
of its unpaid residential mortgage loans and similar obligations at the beginning of each year, or 1/20 of its advances
(borrowings) from the Federal Home Loan Bank, whichever is greater. The Bank was in compliance with this
requirement with an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock at March 31, 2002 of $8.5 million.

The Federal Home Loan Banks are required to provide funds for the resolution of insolvent thrifts in the
late 1980s and to contribute funds for affordable housing programs. These requirements could reduce the amount of
dividends that the Federal Home Loan Banks pay to their members and could also result in the Federal Home Loan
Banks imposing a higher rate of interest on advances to their members. If dividends were reduced, or interest on
future Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased, the Bank's net interest income would likely also be reduced.
Recent legislation has changed the structure of the Federal Home Loan Banks funding obligations for insolvent
thrifts, revised the capital structure of the Federal Home Loan Banks and implemented entirely voluntary
membership for Federal Home Loan Banks. Management cannot predict the effect that these changes may have
with respect to its Federal Home Loan Bank membership.

Federal Reserve System

The Federal Reserve Board regulations require savings institutions to maintain noninterest-earning reserves
against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking accounts). The regulations generally
provide that reserves be maintained against aggregate transaction accounts as follows: for accounts aggregating
$41.3 million or less (subject to adjustment by the Federal Reserve Board) the reserve requirement is 3%; and for
accounts aggregating greater than $41.3 million, the reserve requirement is $1.239 million plus 10% (subject to
adjustment by the Federal Reserve Board between 8% and 14%) against that portion of total transaction accounts in
excess of $41.3 million. The first $5.7 million of otherwise reservable balances {subject to adjustments by the
Federal Reserve Board) are exempted from the reserve requirements. The Bank complies with the foregoing
requirements.
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FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION
Federal Taxation

General. The Company and the Bank report their income on a fiscal year, consolidated basis and the
accrual method of accounting, and are subject to federal income taxation in the same manner as other corporations
with some exceptions, including particularly the Bank's reserve for bad debts discussed below. The fellowing
discussion of tax matters is intended only as a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive description of
the tax rules applicable to the Bank or the Company. The Bank has not been audited by the IRS or the
Massachusetts Department of Revenue for nine years, since 1992, which covered the tax years 1992 and previous.
For its 2002 taxable year, the Company is subject to a maximum federal income tax rate of 34%.

Bad Debt Reserves. For fiscal years beginning prior to December 31, 1995, thrift institutions which
qualified under certain definitional tests and other conditions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”)
were permitted to use certain favorable provisions to calculate their deductions from taxable income for annual
additions to their bad debt reserve. A reserve could be established for bad debts on qualifying real property loans
(generally secured by interests in real property improved or to be improved) under (i) the Percentage of Taxable
Income Method (the “PTI Method™) or (ii) the Experience Method. The reserve for nonqualifying loans was
computed using the Experience Method.

The Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 (the “1996 Act”), which was enacted on August 20, 1996,
repeals the reserve method of accounting for bad debts for tax years beginning after 1985 and requires savings
institutions to recapture (i.e., take into income) certain portions of their accumulated bad debt reserves. Thrift
institutions eligible to be treated as “small banks” (assets of $500 million or less) are allowed to use the Experience
Method applicable to such institutions, while thrift institutions that are treated as large banks (assets exceeding
$500 million) are required to use only the specific charge-off method. Thus, the PTI Method of accounting for bad
debts is no longer available for any financial institution.

A thrift institution required to change its method of computing reserves for bad debts will treat such change
as a change in method of accounting, initiated by the taxpayer, and having been made with the consent of the IRS.
Any Section 481(a) adjustment required to be taken into income with respect to such change generally will be taken
into income ratably over a six-taxable year period, beginning with the first taxable year beginning after 1995,
subject to a 2-year suspension if the “residential loan requirement” is satisfied.

Under the residential loan requirement provision, the recapture required by the 1996 Act will be suspended
for each of two successive taxable years, beginning with the Bank's 1996 taxable year, in which the Bank originates
a minimum of certain residential loans based upon the average of the principal amounts of such loans made by the
Bank during its six taxable years preceding its current taxable year.

Distributions. Under the 1996 Act, if the Bank makes “non-dividend distributions” to the Company, such
distributions will be considered to have been made from the Bank's unrecaptured tax bad debt reserves (including
the balance of its reserves as of December 31, 1987) to the extent thereof, and then from the Bank's supplemental
reserve for losses on loans, to the extent thereof, and an amount based on the amount distributed (but not in excess
of the amount of such reserves) will be included in the Bank's income. Non-dividend distributions include
distributions in excess of the Bank's current and accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal income
tax purposes, distributions in redemption of stock, and distributions in partial or complete liquidation. Dividends
paid out of the Bank's current or accumulated earnings and profits will not be so included in the Bank's income.
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The amount of additional taxable income triggered by a non-dividend is an amount that, when reduced
by the tax attributable to the income, is equal to the amount of the distribution. Thus, if the Bank makes a non-
dividend distribution to the Company, approximately one and one-half times the amount of such distribution (but
not in excess of the amount of such reserves) would be includable in income for federal income tax purposes,
assuming a 35% federal corporate income tax rate. The Bank does not intend to pay dividends that would result in a
recapture of any portion of its bad debt reserves.

SAIF Recapitalization Assessment. The Funds Act levied a 65.7-cent fee on every $100 of thrift deposits
held on March 31, 1995. For financial statement purposes, this assessment was reported as an expense for the
quarter ended September 30, 1996. The Funds Act includes a provision, which states that the amount of any special
assessment paid to capitalize SAIF under this legislation is deductible under Section 162 of the Code in the year of
payment.

State and Local Taxation

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Taxation. On July 27, 1995, the Governor of Massachusetts approved
legislation to reduce the tax rate applicable to financial institutions, including savings banks, from 12.54% on their
net income to 10.50% on their net income apportioned to Massachusetts. The reduced rate was phased-in over a
five-year period whereby the rate was 11.71% for 1996, 11.32% for 1997, 10.91% for 1998, and will be 10.50% for
future years. Net income for years beginning before January 1, 1999 includes gross income as defined under the
provisions of the Code, plus interest from bonds, notes and evidences of indebtedness of any state, including
Massachusetts, less the deductions, excluding the deductions for dividends received, state taxes, and net operating
losses, as defined under the provisions of the Code. For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 1999, the
definition of state taxable income is modified to allow a deduction for 95% of dividends received from stock where
the Company owns 15% or more of the voting stock of the institution paying the dividend and to allow deductions
from certain expenses allocated to federally tax exempt obligations. Subsidiary corporations of the Company
conducting business in Massachusetts must file separate Massachusetts state tax returns and are taxed as financial
institutions, with certain modifications and grandfathering for taxable years before 1996. The net worth or tangible
property of such grandfathered subsidiaries is taxed at a rate of 0.26%. Such grandfathered subsidiaries may file
consolidated tax returns on the net earnings portion of the corporate tax.

Corporations that qualify as “securities corporations,” as defined by the Massachusetts tax code, are taxed
at a special rate of 0.33% of their gross income if they qualify as a “bank-holding company” under the
Massachusetts tax code. The Company qualifies for this reduced tax rate provided that it is exclusively engaged in
activities of a “securities corporation.” The Company qualifies as a securities corporation because a separate
subsidiary was formed to make the loan to the Bank's Employee Stock Ownership Plan and related trust and all of
the Company's other activities qualify as activities permissible for a securities corporation. If the Company fails to
so qualify, however, it will be taxed as a financial institution at a rate of 10.50% beginning in fiscal 2001.

The Bank has two subsidiary corporations that qualify as “securities corporations,” as defined by the
Massachusetts tax code, which are taxed at a special rate of 1.32% of their net income under the Massachusetts tax
code. The subsidiaries qualify for this reduced tax rate provided that they exclusively engaged in investment
activities that can also be done by the Bank.

Delaware Taxation. As a Delaware holding company not earning income in Delaware, the Company is
exempt from Delaware corporate income tax but is required to file an annual report with and pay an annual
franchise tax to the State of Delaware.
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Item 2. Properties

The Bank currently conducts its business through its executive, administrative and full service offices. The
Company believes that the Bank's current facilities are adequate to meet the present needs of the Bank and the

Company.
Net Book Value of
Property or
Leased Original Date of Leasehold
or Year Leased Lease Improvements at
Location Owned or Acguired Expiration Mareh 31, 2002
(In thousands)
Executive/Branch Office:
1299 Beacon Street
Brookline, MA 02446.............. Owned 1950 — $ 723
Administrative Office:
1309 Beacon Street
Brookline, MA 02446............. Leased 1687 February 2007 88
1319 Beacon Street
Brookline, MA 02446............. Leased 1999 November 2004 (1) 118
Branch Offices:
184 Massachusetts Avenue
Boston, MA 02115................. Leased 1973 December 2003 90
Dedham Mall
Dedham, MA 02026............... Leased 1982 July 2005 (2) 95
61 Lenox Street
Norwood, MA 02062.............. Owned 1975 — 312
705 High Street
Westwood, MA 02090............. Owned 1977 — 306
931 Main Street
Walpole, MA 02081................ Leased 2000 January 2010 (3) 122
Total.. .o $1,854

(1) The Bank has an option to renew this lease for one additional five-year period.
(2) The Bank will be relocating the Dedham branch to a new location in the Dedham Plaza in July of 2002.
(3) The Bank has an option to renew this lease for one additional ten-year period.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Bank is not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than routine legal proceedings occurring
in the ordinary course of business. Such routine legal proceedings, in the aggregate, are believed by management to
be immaterial to the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None
PART I

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

The Common Stock of the Company is traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol “BYS.”
The stock began trading on March 30, 1998. As of May 21, 2002, there were 356 registered recordholders of the
Common Stock of the Company, which includes shares held in street name. The following table sets forth for the
quarters indicated the range of high and low sale prices and dividend information for the Common Stock of the
Company as reported on the American Stock Exchange. The Companies payments of dividends are subject to the
laws of Delaware which generally limit dividends to an amount equal to the excess of the net assets of the Company
(the amount by which total assets exceed total liabilities) over its statutory capital, or if there is no such excess, to its
net profits for the current and/or preceding fiscal year.

Year Ended March 31, 2002

4" Quarter 3™ Quarter 2™ Quarter 1* Quarter
High..oooooniern $42.15 $37.00 $36.40 $32.10
LOoW..oiriirrenniiecnneeen, $36.35 $34.90 $31.68 $28.90
Dividend Paid .......... $0.18 $0.18 $0.15 $0.15

Year Ended March 31, 2001

4" Quarter 3™ Quarter 2" Quarter 1% Quarter
High..oocoornviinenen, $29.40 $28.44 $25.88 $23.25
LOW. oo, $28.00 $24.44 $21.44 $16.00
Dividend Paid .......... $0.12 $0.12 $0.10 $0.10
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Item 6. Selected Finamncial Data

At or for the years ended March 31,

2002 200t 2000 1999 1998
Selected Balance Sheet Data: (In thousands, except per share data)
Total 8SSEtS...oveervereerereeriieriereerceeieanens $528,715 $ 491,857 $ 460,137 *$ 359,404 $ 295,291
Investments (1) ..oocevirniiineincinnicenens 41,320 34,806 32,939 31,675 56,795
LOans, Net.......cceeeevecvevreerinnicreeereeeenenns 445,547 417,704 393,093 304,372 224,928
Mortgage loans held for sale............... 813 — — 321 822
DIEPOSILS ..vvveereererieeerneeireebeeereeeeenens 328,626 273,263 247344 218,955 209,956
FHLB advances.......c.ccoocevevveeiernennns 137,143 158,139 147,527 77,119 20,000
Stockholders' equity.....c.ocoovcenerinenes 55,031 53,760 52,630 60,298 63,574
Allowance for loan losses................... 4,535 4,258 3,915 3,027 2,513
Non-performing loans..........c.cc.ccee. 109 368 1,224 1,964 2,279
Non-performing assets.........c.ccouercnnee. 109 368 1,286 1,964 2,279
Book value per share...........cccocvrvenneee $ 3565 $ 3277 $ 29.06 $ 2688 $  27.02
Selected Operating Data:
Interest iNCOME.......coovvveriveviiirerrienn $ 38,049 $ 37,220 $ 30,973 $ 23,426 $ 19,249
Interest EXPense......ccovuvvercrerncerennens 17,734 21,185 16,355 10,758 10,200
Net interest inCOMe .........ccoeeeverene. 20,315 16,035 14,618 12,668 9,049
Provision for loan 10ss€S........cccveueu. 312 460 875 617 856
Net interest income after provision
for loan loSSES .vocvevviiviicierecreie, 20,003 15,575 13,743 12,051 8,193
Total noninterest income .................. 1,463 833 1,106 431 313
Total noninterest eXpense ................. 12,094 10,467 10,612 8,706 11,008
Income before income taxes ........... 9,372 5,941 4,237 3,776 (2,502)
Income taxes (benefit)...........cccveneens 3,737 2,329 1,482 1,542 (751)
Net Income (108S)...covecvveiiiverennnee. $ 5,635 $ 3612 $ 2755 § 2234 $ (1751
Per Share Data:
Basic armings.......cocecvrromererenonenns $ 358 $ 2.08 $ 134 $ 097 N/A
Diluted earnings......ccccocoovvevrncnnnn. $ 3.36 $ 2.02 $ 1.34 $ 095 N/A
Dividends paid........ccooovivvceiiniinnnes § 0.66 $ 044 $ 0.28 $ 0.05 N/A

(1) Investments include available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity securities and short-term investments.

At or for the years ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Perfoermance Ratios:
Return (loss) on average assets........... 1.11% 0.75% 0.65% 0.71% 0.7)%
Return (loss) on average equity ......... 10.50 6.74 4.82 3.58 (8.64)
Average equity as a percent of

AVETAZE ASSELS...o.ovviirreniriceriieicanenes 10.56 11.12 13.38 19.88 8.27
Interest rate spread..........cocoeviiecrerene 3.88 3.07 3.13 3.36 3.54
Net interest margin....c...cccoeceereeneerenns 428 3.55 3.63 4.19 3.82
Average interest-earning assets to

average interest bearing liabilities... 110.76 110.20 112.36 123.34 106.52
Operating expense as a percent of

average total assets................ceoeeen 238 2.18 2.49 2.77 4.49
Dividend payout ratio-diluted............ 19.64 21.78 20.90 5.26 N/A
Capital Raties:
Leverage capital ratio.............cccoco...... 8.02 8.61 9.15 11.66 13.31
Risk-based capital ratio.............cccoo... 11.72 13.11 15.84 19.99 26.25
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Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming loans as a percent

of 10ans ... 0.02 0.09 0.31 ‘ 0.65 1.00
Nonperforming assets as a percent
of total assets....i..occvvcicciiniiinen 0.02 0.07 0.28 0.55 0.77

Allowance for loan losses as a percent
of loans before allowance for loan

OSSES..ccoiiiierierre e 1.01 1.01 0.99 0.98 1.10
Allowance for loan losses as a percent
of nonperforming loans................... 4,160.55 1,157.07 319.85 154.12 110.27

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

2

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the “Selected Financial Data’ and

Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

General

The Company does not transact any material business other than through its wholly owned subsidiary, the
Bank. The Bank’s results of operations are dependent primarily on net interest income, which is the difference
between the income earned on its loan and investment portfolios and its cost of funds, consisting of the interest paid
on deposits and borrowings. Results of operations are also affected by the Bank’s provision for loan losses, loan
sale activities and loan servicing. The Bank’s non-interest expense principally consists of compensation and
employee benefits, office occupancy and equipment expense, data processing, advertising and business promotion,
professional fees and other expenses. Results of operations are also significantly affected by general economic and
competitive conditions, particularly changes in interest rates, government policies and actions of regulatory
authorities. Future changes in applicable law, regulations or government policies may materially impact the Bank.

Operating Strategy

Management's primary goal has been to maintain the Bank's profitability, asset quality and its capital
position by: (i) investing in one- to four-family loans secured by properties located in its primary market area;
(ii) investing in multi-family, commercial real estate and construction and development loans secured by properties
located in the Bank's primary market area, to the extent that such loans meet the Bank's general underwriting
criteria; (iii) investing funds not utilized for loan investments in various equity and corporate debt investments and
mortgage-backed and mortgage-related securities; and (iv) managing interest rate risk by emphasizing the
origination of adjustable-rate loans and short-term fixed-rate loans and investing in short-term securities and
generally selling longer-term fixed-rate loans that the Bank originates. The Bank intends to continue this operating
strategy in an effort to enhance its long-term profitability while maintaining a reasonable level of interest rate risk
and enhance such strategy by expanding the products and services it offers, as necessary, in order to improve its
market share in its primary market area. In this regard, the Bank offers business checking accounts, 24-hour
banking by telephone, debit card services and Internet banking.

Comparison of Financial Condition at March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2001

Total assets at March 31, 2002 were $528.7 million, compared to $491.9 million at March 31, 2001, an
increase of $36.9 million, or 7.5%. Asset growth was primarily due to the increased loan and short-term investment
securities portfolios funded by a $55.4 million, or 20.3% increase in deposits. Deposit growth was also used to
reduce FHLB advances by $21.0 million, or 13.3%.

Investments, which include available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity securities and short-term
investments totaled $41.3 million, at March 31, 2002, an increase of $6.5 million, or 18.7%, compared to
$34.8 million at March 31, 2001, primarily due to an increase in short-term investments. The increase in short-term
investments was the result of an increase of federal funds invested at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston and
the Central Cooperative Bank. While investment securities available-for-sale remained relatively flat the mix
shifted from a larger concentration in morigage-backed securities to marketable equity securities, capital trust
preferred securities and corporate bonds and notes with higher yields.
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Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses and unearned income and including loans held-for-sale,
increased $28.7 million or 6.9%, to $446.4 million at March 31, 2002, compared to $417.7 million at March 31,
2001. The increase in loans was due to a $15.4 million, or 17.7%, increase in multi-family loans, an $18.8 millicn,
or 19.0% increase in commercial real estate loans, a $7.0 million, or 40.7%, increase in construction and
development loans, a $7.7 million, or 197.0%, increase in commercial loans, offset by a decrease of $17.5 million,
or 8.5%, in residential one-to-four family loans. The increase in the Ioan portfolic was a result of the ongeoing
efforts to grow the loan portfolio, which produces higher returns. Multi-family and commercial real estate lending
continue to be the primary areas of concentration as the Bank’s strategic plan is to have a more diversified portfolic
mix than the traditional single family residential lending in the past.

Non-performing assets at March 31, 2002 were $109,000, compared to $368,000 at March 31, 2001, a
decrease of 70.4%. This decrease was the result of certain non-accrual loans being paid off or brought current. The
allowance for loan losses increased $277,000 to $4.5 million at March 31, 2002, compared to $4.3 million at
March 31, 2001, an increase of 6.5%. At March 31, 2002 the allowance represented 4,161% of non-performing
loans and 1.01% of total loans, compared to 1,157% of non-performing loans and 1.01% of total loans at March 31,
2001. The bank did not have any REO at March 31, 2002 and Mazch 31, 2001.

Deposits increased 20.3%, to $328.6 million at March 31, 2002 from $273.3 million at March 31, 2001.
The deposit growth occurred primarily in money market deposit accounts, NOW accounts, savings accounts and
non-interest bearing deposits which increased $51.2 million, or 65.8%, $4.4 million, or 14.9%, $2.4 million, or
8.6% and $5.6 million, or 46.0%, respectively. Certificate of deposit accounts, which tend to be higher costing
deposit accounts, decreased $8.2 million, or 6.5%, to $117.4 million at March 31, 2002 from $125.6 million at
March 31, 2001. The deposit growth was the direct result of the investment in our retail products. The Bank
introduced new products, alternative investment services, small business deposit products, commercial services and
delivery channels such as home banking, on-line bill pay, and debit cards. The Bank has also spent a great deal of
time and effort in developing a more sales oriented culture.

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston totaled $137.1 million at March 31, 2002, a 13.3%
decrease from the $158.1 million at March 31, 2001. Other Borrowed Funds which consist of Federal Funds
purchased, and to a lesser extent funds deposit by customers for treasury tax and loan payments, totaled $2.9 million
at March 31, 2002, a 43.3% increase from $2.0 million at March 31, 2001.

Total equity was $55.0 million, or 10.4% of total assets at March 31, 2002, an increase of $1.3 million, or
2.4%, from the $53.8 million, or 10.9% of total assets at March 31, 2001. The change in equity was the result of the
net income for the period and a reduction in certain stock benefit plans, offset by the net increase of 117,002 shares
of treasury stock at a net cost of $4.3 million, the payment of dividends and a decrease in other comprehensive
income. The Company's book value per share at March 31, 2002 was $35.65, compared to $32.77 at March 31,
2001, an increase of $2.88, or 8.8%.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001
General

Net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 totaled $5.6 million, or $3.58 basic and $3.36 fully
diluted earnings per share, compared to $3.6 million, or $2.08 basic and $2.02 fully diluted eamnings per share for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001. This represents an increase of 56.0% in net income and a 72.1% and 66.3%
increase in basic and fully diluted earnings per share, respectively, over the last fiscal year. The net income for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 represents a return on average assets of 1.11% and a return on average equity of
10.50%, compared to 0.75% and 6.74% for the last fiscal year.

Interest and Dividend Income

Interest and dividend income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 was $38.0 million, compared to
$37.2 million for the year ended March 31, 2001, an increase of $829,000, or 2.2%. The increase in interest and
dividend income was a result of an increase in the average balance of interest earning assets. The average balance
of interest-earning assets increased from $451.9 million for fiscal year 2001 to $474.9 million for fiscal year 2002,
an increase of $23.0 million, or 5.1%.
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The increase in the average balance of interest-earning assets was primarily a result of an increase in the average
balance of loans, net, of $22.0 million, or 5.4%. The yield on average interest-earning assets decreased 23 basis
points to 8.01%, due to the lower interest rate environment.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 was $17.7 million, compared to $21.2 million
for the year ended March 31, 2001, a decrease of $3.5 million, or 16.3%. The decrease in interest expense was due
in part to the lower interest rate environment and shift in the deposit mix to core accounts and less certificate of
deposit accounts, which resulted in a decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities from 5.17% to 4.14%. The
decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities was offset by an increase in the average balance of interest-bearing
liabilities from $410.0 million for fiscal year 2001 to $428.8 million, an increase of $18.7 million, or 4.6%. The
increase in the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities was primarily a result of an increase in the average
balance of interest-bearing deposit accounts totaling $32.6 million, or 13.0%, offset by a decrease in the average
balance of borrowed funds totaling $13.9 million, or 8.8%.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $312,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, compared to
$460,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001. The lower level of the reserve provision for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2002 was a direct result of the slower growth in the loan portfolio, the reduction in the level of
non-performing loans, offset by the increased level of multi-family and commercial real estate loans, which
generally bear a higher risk than single family residential lending. Management believes that the provision for loan
losses and the allowance for loan losses are currently reasonable and adequate to cover any losses reasonably
expected in the existing loan portfolio.

While management estimates loan losses using the best available information, no assurances can be given
that future additions to the allowance will not be necessary based on changes in economic and real estate market
conditions, further information obtained regarding problem loans, identification of additional problem loans and
other factors, both within and outside of management's control. Additionally, with the expectation of the Bank to
grow its existing loan portfolio, future additions to the allowance may be necessary to maintain adequate coverage

ratios.

Other Income

For the fiscal year end March 31, 2002, noninterest income, net of gains and losses on investment
activities, totaled $1.4 million, compared to $1.1 million for the same period last year, an increase of $252,000, or
22.5%. The increase was primarily a result of the increased number of loans sold and the gain on the sale of those
loans, the sale of other assets, fees on loans and deposit accounts and income received from alternative investment
services offered by the Bank. During the twelve-month period ended March 31, 2002, the Company recognized a
gain of $193,000 compared to a loss of $64,000 for the year ended March 31, 2001, from the sale of various equity
security investments. In addition, the Company recognized losses on trading securities for the years ended March
31, 2002 and 2001 of $103,000 and $224,000, respectively, which represents the change in the market value of the
assets supporting certain employee benefit plans.

Other Expense

Total noninterest expense was $12.1 million for the twelve months ended March 31, 2002, compared to
$10.5 million for the same period last year, an increase of $1.6 million, or 15.5%. Total salaries and benefits
increased $1.1 million, or 16.0%, primarily the result of a general increase in salaries and benefits from annual
salary increases, increased staffing levels and the increased cost of certain employee benefit plans due to the
increase in the Company’s stock price.” Cccupancy and equipment expense increased $107,000, or 7.1%. This
increase was the result of the increased level of depreciation on improvements associated with the added space for
the retail and administrative areas of the Bank and an increase in utility and maintenance costs associated with the
Bank’s facilities. Advertising expense totaled $555,000 compared to $479,000 for the same period last year, an
increase of $76,000, or 15.9%, primarily as a result of the promotion and introduction of new deposit products and
retail services.
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Data processing costs increased $92,000, or 26.0%, due to the increased level of deposits and new products and
services being offered. Other expenses, increased $299,000, or 19.3%, primarily a result of increases in
professional services, education and fraining expense as well as an increase in postage and telecommunication
expenses from the higher level of deposit and loan accounts serviced by the Bank.

Income Taxes

For the twelve months ended March 31, 2002 income taxes of $3.7 million were provided on net income
before tax of $9.4 million for an effective rate of 39.9%, compared to $2.3 million on income before taxes of $5.9
million for an effective rate of 39.2%, for the same period last year. The change in effective tax rates from year to
year was a result of the increase in the non-deductible expense portion associated with the Bank’s ESOP plan.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended March 31, 2601 and 2000

General

Net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 totaled $3.6 million, or $2.08 basic and $2.02 fully
diluted earnings per share, compared to $2.8 million, or $1.34 basic and fully diluted eamings per share for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. This represents an increase of 31.1% in net income and a 55.2% and 50.8%
increase in basic and fully diluted earnings per share, over the last fiscal year. The net income for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2001 represents a return on average assets of 0.75% and a return on average equity of 6.74%,
compared to 0.65% and 4.82% for the fiscal year 2000, respectively.

Interest and Dividend Income

Interest and dividend income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 was $37.2 million, compared to
$31.0 million for the year ended March 31, 2000, an increase of $6.2 million, or 20.0%. The increase in interest and
dividend income was a result of an increase in the average balance of interest earning assets. The average balance
of interest-earning assets increased from $402.2 million for fiscal year 2000 to $451.9 million for fiscal year 2001,
an increase of $49.7 million, or 12.3%. The increase in the average balance of interest-earning assets was primarily
a result of an increase in the average balance of loans, net, of $52.1 million, or 14.6%, offset by a slight decrease in
the average balance of investment securities, mortgage-backed securities and Federal funds sold totaling $3.0
million, or 6.6%. The yield on average interest-earning assets increased 54 basis points to 8.24%.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 was $21.2 million, compared to $16.4 million
for the year ended March 31, 2000, an increase of $4.8 million, or 29.3%. The increase in interest expense was
primarily due to an increase in the average balance and cost of interest-bearing liabilities. The average balance of
interest-bearing liabilities increased from $358.0 million for fiscal year 2000 to $410.0 million, an increase of $52.0
million, or 14.5%. The increase in the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities was primarily a result of an
increase in the average balance of interest-bearing deposit accounts totaling $31.7 million, or 14.4%, and an
increase in the average balance of borrowed funds totaling $20.4 million, or 14.7%. The cost of average interest-
bearing liabilities increased 60 basis points to 5.17%, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $460,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, compared to
$875,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. The level of the reserve position for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2001 was a direct result of the slower growth in the loan portfolio and the increased level of multi-family
and commercial real estate loans, which generally bear a higher risk than single family residential lending.
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Other Income

For the fiscal year end March 31, 2001, noninterest income, net of gains and losses on investment
activities, totaled $1.1 million, compared to $819,000 for fiscal year 2000, an increase of $302,000, or 36.9%.
These changes were primarily a result of tax-advantaged income received on bank owned life insurance policies,
fees on loans and deposit accounts and income received from alternative investment services offered by the Bank.
During the period the Company also recognized losses of $64,000 from the sale of investment securities. These
losses were the result of the sale of various equity securities. The Company then reinvested the funds in interest-
earning investments. In addition, the Company recognized gains and losses on trading securities, which represents
the change in the market value of the assets supporting certain employee benefit plans.

Other Expense

Total noninterest expense was $10.5 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, compared to
$10.6 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, a decrease of $145,000, or 1.4%. Total salaries and benefits
decreased $266,000, or 3.9%, primarily due to a net reduction in the costs associated with the Company’s stock
based compensation and employee benefit plans, offset by a general increase in salaries and benefits due to the
increased number of employees and the opening of an additional branch location. Occupancy and equipment
expense totaled $1.5 million compared to $1.2 million for the same period last year, an increase of $310,000, or
25.9%. This increase was the result of the increased level of depreciation on improvements associated with the
added space for the retail and administrative areas of the Bank. Advertising expense totaled $479,000, compared to
$538,000 for the same period last year, a decrease of $59,000, or 11.0%, primarily as a result of the promotion and
introduction of new deposit products and retail services during the last fiscal year. Data processing costs increased
$80,000, or 29.2%, due to the increased level of deposits and new products and services being offered. Other
expenses, including professional fees, decreased $210,000, or 11.9%, primarily a result of a reduction in
professional service and other production expenses associated with the development of new products and services
introduced during last fiscal year.

Income Taxes

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, income taxes of $2.3 million were provided on net income
before tax of $5.9 million, for an effective rate of 39.2%, compared to $1.5 million on income before taxes of $4.2
million for an effective rate of 35.0%, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. The change in effective tax rates
from year to year is a result of the Bank developing a valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset for the
contribution deduction carryover and capital loss carryover.
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Average Balances, Interest and Average Yields/Costs.

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the Company for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000. The average yields and costs are derived by dividing income or expense by the average
balance of interest-earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities, respectively, for the periods shown except where
noted otherwise. Average balances are derived from average month-end balances. Management does not believe
that the use of average monthly balances instead of average daily balances has caused any material differences in
the information presented. The yields and costs include fees, which are considered adjustments to yields. Loan
interest and yield data does not include any accrued interest from non-accruing loans.

For the Years Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yietd/
Balance Inmterest Cest Balance Imterest Cost  Balance  Imterest Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Interest-eamning assets:
Federal funds sold/FHLB
overnight account...........cccoueeee. $ 1,526 $ 42 275% $ 1951 $ 113 579% § 2032 § 97 4.77%
Investment securities (1)................ 27,001 1,865 6.91 22,009 1,587 721 23,727 1,406 5.91
Interest earning deposits................ 769 28  3.64 577 37 641 — — —
Mortgage-backed and
mortgage-related securities......... 15,021 801 5.33 18,731 1,175  6.27 19,971 1,256 6.29
Loans, net and mortgage
loans held-for-sale (2)........c........ 430,567 35313 820 408,590 34,308 8.40 356,468 28,214 7.91
Total interest-earning
BSSELS .. oveerreirirecrer e 474,384 38,049 801 451,858 37,220 824 402,198 30,973 7.70
Non-interest-earning assets. - 33,332 30,197 24,746
Total @ssets ...cceovrvvecniricennines $508.216 $482,055 $426,944
Liabilities and Equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW accounts.......covereeennrcennnnen $ 28,590 $ 204 071% $ 24454 $ 226 092% $ 22993 § 256 1.11%
Regular savings accounts ... 28,051 394 140 26,702 535  2.00 25,484 512 2.01
Money market accounts... 103,627 3,341  3.22 69,371 3,034 437 58,644 2,278 3.88
Certificate accounts ..........coooeeeeeae 124,009 6,104 492 131,111 7.491 571 112,798 5,838 5.18
Total interest-bearing
dePOSItS. ..ot 284,277 10,043 3.53 251,638 11,286  4.49 219,919 8,884 4.04
Other borrowings 2,000 70 3.50 3,026 185 6.11 7,035 396 5.63
FHLB advances ..........cccoevcvvneeees 142,480 7,621 535S 155,380 9,714 625 131,015 7,075 5.40
Total interest-bearing
Habilities oo 428,757 17,734 4.14 410,044 21,185 5.17 357,969 16,355 4.57
Demand deposits (3). 14,625 8,332 4,212
Other liabilities ......cccceovrieriierniiens 11,176 10,085 7,634
Total liabilities..........ccooovvenne. 454,558 428,461 369,815
EQUILY v 53,658 53,594 57,129
Total liabilities and
EQUILY .o $508.216 $482,055 $420,944
Net interest income/Net
interest rate spread (4) .................. $20315 3.87% $16,035 3.07% $14,018 3.13%
Net interest margin (5).........c.cceoeie 4.28% 3.55% 3.03%
Ratio of interest-earning
assets to interest-bearing
1Habilities ..o 110.76% 110.20% 112.36%

(1) Includes investment securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity, Co-operative Central Bank Liquidity Fund, and stock in FHLB-

Boston.

(2) Amount is net of unearned income, undisbursed proceeds of construction and development loans in process, allowance for loan losses and

includes non-accruing loans. The Bank records interest income on non-accruing loans on a cash basis.

(3) Demand deposits primarily represent noninterest-bearing custodial accounts and Treasurers checks issued not yet funded.
(4) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-eaming assets and the weighted average

cost of interest-bearing liabilities.

(5) Net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.

38




Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and
changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected the Company’s interest
income and interest expense during the periods indicated. Information is provided in each category with respect to:
(1) changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) changes attributable to
changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and (iii) the net change. The changes attributable to the
combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated on a proportional basis between changes in rate and volume.

Year Ended March 31, 2002 Year Ended March 31, 2001
Compared teo Compared te
Year Ended March 31, 2001 Year Ended March 31, 2000
Inerease (Decrease) Increase (Decrease
Due to Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(In thousands)

Interest-earning assets:

Federal funds sold/FHLB ovemight account........... $(21) $ (50) s (7)) $ @) $20 $ 16
INVESTMENT SECUNILIES ...ivviviivieri e e ciernens 341 (63) 278 1) 272 181
Interest-earning deposits...... 30 (39) ) 37 — 37
Mortgage-backed securities............oocoenine (213) (161) (374) (78) 3) 81)
Loans, net, and mortgage loans held-for-sale.......... 1,770 (765) 1,005 4,303 1,791 6,094
Total interest-eaming assets .........c.coovceemviinnnen. 1,907 (1,078) 829 4,167 2,080 6,247
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW aCCOUNTS ..ot 67 (89) (22) 18 (48) 30)
Regular savings accounts ........ccccoeivieiiiniinnnnn 29 (170) (141) 24 1) 23
Money market accounts.... 656 (349) 307 448 308 756
Certificate aCCOUNTS ..oovviiviiriier e e (390) (997) _(1,387) 1,008 645 1,653
Total deposits .o.ocerviiorrrriceercecrrin e 362 (1,605)  (1,243) 1,498 904 2,402
Other Borrowings..... (51 64) (115) (249) 38 @1
FHLB advances .......ccccooococevivvenene (764) (1,329)  (2,093) 1,428 1,211 2,639
Total interest-bearing liabilities.... (453) (2,998) _(3.451) 2,677 2,153 4,830
Net change in net interest iNCOME ....ccoooovvvivireiiiienes $2,360 $1,920  $4.280 $1.490 § (73) 81417

Ligquidity and Capital Resources

The Bank's primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans, mortgage-backed
and investment securities and FHLB advances. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans are predictable
sources of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic
conditions and competition. On March 15, 2001, the OTS eliminated the regulation that requires savings associations
to maintain an average daily balance of liquid assets of at least 4% of its liquidity base, based on a percentage of
deposits and short-term borrowings. Even though the percentage requirement has been eliminated, the interim rule
still requires thrifts to maintain adequate liquidity to assure safe and sound operation. The Bank manages its liquidity
position and demands for funding primarily by investing excess funds in short-term investments and utilizing FHLB
advances in periods when the Bank's demands for liquidity exceed funding from deposit inflows.

The Bank's most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents and securities. The levels of these assets are
dependent on the Bank's operating, financing, lending and investing activities during any given periocd. At March 31,
2002, cash and cash equivalents and investment securities totalled $52.3 million, or 9.9% of total assets.

The Bank has other sources of liquidity if a need for additicnal funds arises, including FHLB advances. At
March 31, 2002, the Bank had $137.1 million in advances outstanding from the FHLB and an additional overall
borrowing capacity from the FELB of $63.9 million. Depending on market conditions, the pricing of deposit
products and FHLB advances, the Bank may continue to rely on FHLB borrowings to fund asset growth.
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At March 31, 2002, the Bank had commitments tc fund loans and unused outstanding lines of credit and
undisbursed proceeds of construction mortgages totalling $44.6 million. The Bank anticipates that it will have
sufficient funds available to meet its current lcan origination commitments. Certificate accounts, including IRA and
Keogh accounts, which are scheduled to mature in less than one year from March 31, 2002, totaled $88.7 million.
The Bank relies on competitive rates, quality customer service and long-standing relationships with customers to
retain deposits. Based upon the Bank’s historical experience with deposit retention, management believes that,
although it is not possible to predict future terms and conditions upon renewal, a significant portion of such deposits
will remain with the Bank.

The primary source of funding for the Company is dividend payments from the Bank, and, to a lesser extent,
sales and maturities of investment securities and eamings on investments and deposits held by the Company.
Dividend payments by the Bank have primarily been used to fund stock repurchase programs. The Bank’s ability to
pay dividends and other capital distributions to the Campany is generally limited by the regulations of the Office of
Thrift Supervision.

At March 31, 2002, the Bank exceeded all of its regulatory capital requirements with a tangible capital level
of $41.9 million, or 8.0%, of total adjusted assets, which is above the required level of $7.8 million, or 1.5%; core
capital of $41.9 million, or 8.0%, of total adjusted assets, which is above the required level of $20.9 million, or 4.0%;
and risk-based capital of $47.1 million, or 11.7%, of risk-weighted assets, which is above the required level of
$32.1 million, or 8.0%.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto presented elsewhere in this Form 10-K have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which require
the measurement of financial position and operating results generally in terms of historical dollar amounts without
considering the changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation
is reflected in the increased cost of the Bank's operations. Unlike industrial companies, nearly all of the assets and
liabilities of the Bank are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on the Bank's
performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same
direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

In June 1998, FASB issued SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.
This Statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts, (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities. It
requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measure those
instruments at fair value.

Under this Statement, an entity that elects to apply hedge accounting is required to establish at the
inception of the hedge the method it will use for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging derivative and the
measurement approach for determining the ineffective aspect of the hedge. The adoption of this Statement did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position.

FASB has issued SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities. This Statement replaces SFAS No. 125, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, and rescinds SFAS Statement No. 127, “Deferral of the Effective
Date of Certain Provisions of FASB Statements No. 125.” SFAS No. 140 provides accounting and reporting
standards for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities. This Statement provides
consistent standards for distinguishing transfers of financial assets that are sales from transfers that are secured
borrowings.
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This Statement is effective for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities
occurring after March 31, 2001; however, the disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2000. The adoption of this Statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.” This Statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for business combinations and supercedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business
Combinations,” and SFAS No. 38, “Accounting for Pre-acquisition Contingencies of Purchased Enterprises.” Under
Opinion No. 16, business combinations were accounted for using one of two methods, the pooling-of-interests
method or the purchase method. All business combinations are now to be accounted for using the purchase method.
The provisions of SFAS No. 141 apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and to all business
combinations accounted for using the purchase method for which the date of acquisition is July 1, 2001, or later.

The adoption of SFAS No. 141 will have no immediate effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements since it had no pending business combinations as of March 31, 2002 or as of the date of the issuance of
these consolidated financial statements. If the Company consummates business combinations in the future, any such
combinations that would have been accounted for by the pooling-of-interests method under Opinion No. 16 will be
accounted for under the purchase method and the difference in accounting could have a substantial impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2001, the FASR issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” This Statement
addresses financial accounting and reporting for required goodwill and other intangible assets and supercedes APB
Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets.” The initial recognition and measurement provisions of SFAS No. 142 apply to
intangible assets which are defined as assets (not including financial assets) that lack physical substance. The term
“intangible assets” is used in SFAS No. 142 to refer to intangible assets other than goodwill. The accounting for a
recognized intangible asset is based on its useful life. An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized; an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortized. An intangible asset that is subject to amortization shall
be reviewed annually for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.”

SFAS No. 142 provides that goodwill shall not be amortized. Goodwill is defined as the excess of the
cost of an acquired entity over the net of the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed. SFAS No.
142 further provides that goodwill shall be tested for impairment at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting unit.
Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

SFAS No. 142 is effective as follows: All of the provisions of SFAS No. 142 shall be applied in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001, to all goodwill and intangible assets recognized in an entity’s statement of
financial position at the beginning of that fiscal year, regardless of when those previously recognized assets were
initially recognized. The Company believes that the impact of SFAS No. 142 on its future consolidated financial
statements will be immaterial.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Management of Interest Rate Risk and Market Risk Analysis. The principal objective of the Bank’s
interest rate risk management function is to evaluate the interest rate risk included in certain balance sheet accounts,
determine the appropriate level of risk given the Bank’s business strategy, operating environment, capital and
liquidity requirements and performance objectives and manage the risk consistent with the Board of Directors’
approved guidelines. Through such management, the Bank seeks to reduce the vulnerability of its operations to
changes in interest rates. The Bank monitors its interest rate risk as such risk relates to its operating strategies. The
Bank’s Board of Directors has an Asset/Liability Committee which reviews its asset/liability policies and interest rate
risk position. Such committee, which meets on a regular basis, reports trends and interest rate risk position to the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The extent of the movement of interest rates is an uncertainty that could have
a negative impact on the earnings of the Bank.
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In recent years, the Bank has primarily utilized the following strategies tc manage interest rate risk:
(i) emphasizing the origination and purchase of adjustable-rate loans; (ii) investing primarily in short-term U.S.
Government securities, mortgage-backed and mortgage-related securities with shorter estimated maturities;
(iii) utilizing FHLB advances to better structure the maturities of its interest rate sensitive liabilities; and (iv) to a
substantially lesser extent, selling in the secondary market longer-term fixed-rate morigage loans originated while
generally retaining the servicing rights on such loans.

Gap Analysis. The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such
assets and liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring a bank's interest rate sensitivity “gap.” An asset or
liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it will mature or reprice within that time
period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between the amount of interest-earning assets
maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing
within that same time period. At March 31, 2002, the Bank’s cumulative one-year interest rate gap (which is the
difference between the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within one year and interest-bearing
liabilities maturing or repricing within one year) as a percentage of total assets, was a negative 18.3%, compared to a
negative 16.2% at March 31, 2001. A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets
exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest rate
sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive assets. Accordingly, during a period of rising interest
rates, an institution with a negative gap position would be in a2 worse position to invest in higher yielding assets as
compared to an institution with a positive gap position which, consequently, may result in the cost of its interest-
bearing liabilities increasing at a rate faster than its yield on interest-earning assets than if it had a positive gap.
During a period of falling interest rates, an institution with a negative gap position would tend to have its interest-
bearing liabilities repricing downward at a faster rate than its interest-earning assets as compared to an institution with
a positive gap which, consequently, may tend to positively affect the growth of its net interest income.

The following tables set forth the amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
outstanding at March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2001, which are anticipated by the Bank, based upon certain
assumptions, to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown (the “Gap Table™). Except as stated below,
the amount of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature during a particular period were determined in
accordance with the earlier of term to repricing or the contractual maturity of the asset or liability.

The tables set forth an approximation of the projected repricing of assets and liabilities on the basis of
contractual maturities, and scheduled rate adjustments within a one-year period and subsequent selected time
intervals. The loan amounts in the table reflect principal balances expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as a
result of contractual amortization of adjustable-rate loans and fixed-rate loans, and as a result of contractual rate
adjustments on adjustable-rate loans. Money Market accounts, regular savings accounts and NOW accounts are
assumed to have annual decay rates of 80%, 15% and 5%, respectively. Deposit decay rates can have a significant
impact on the Bank’s estimated gap. While the Bank believes such assumptions to be reasonable, there can be no
assurance that assumed decay rates will approximate future withdrawal activity.

The increase in liability sensitivity from the previous year was directly related to the lower level of interest
earning assets re-pricing within one year compared to interest-bearing liabilities within one year. The reduction in the
repricing of interest-bearing assets within one-year was related to the increase in three and five-year adjustable loans
as well as an increase in fifteen year fixed rate loans. Liability sensitivity was impacted by the extension of interest
rate adjustments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances from the one year or less time frame to the one-to-three year
time frame, through the use of amortizing advances.
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Mareh 31, 2002

Interest-earning assets:
Short-term investments.........cceeeovvenns
SECUTNIIES ..ovvviviiee e e
Mortgage-backed

SECUTTHIES ..eoovtriveeniicineescee e v
Stock in FHLB-Boston.

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Money market accounts.............cceen.

Regular savings accounts

NOW accounts.............

Certificate accounts ..

Other borrowed funds...

FHLB advances ...........ccocococenvicnnnee

Total interest-bearing
Habilities c.oovvviericcn e

Interest-eamning assets less

interest-bearing liabilities.................
Cumulative interest-rate

SENSILIVILY ZAP..covisiciisrs s
Cumulative interest-rate gap as

a percentage of total assets ...............
Cumulative interest-rate gap as

a percentage of total interest-

EAMINEG ASSELS....evrvrvrrerrivereerirretarrreeenns
Cumulative interest-earning

assets as a percentage of

cumulative interest-bearing

liabilities ..o

More More More
than than than
1 Year 3 Years 3 Years Greater Total Fair
1 Year te to to than Amount Value
or Less 3 Years 5 Years 15 Years 15 Years [63) 2)(3)
$ 6,339 $ — $§ — $ — $ — $ 6,339 $ 6,339
11,812 497 957 13,332 — 26,598 27,717
— — — 2,456 4,698 7,154 7,264
8,455 —_ — — — 8,455 8,455
8,643 — — — — 8,643 8,643
106,096 129477 94,629 114,083 6,502 450,787 449,343
$141,345 $ 129974 $95,586 $129.871 $11,200 $507,976  $507,761
$103,145 $ 19,340 $ 6,446 3 — $ —  $128931 $ 128,931
7,287 9,237 9,237 7,698 — 33,459 30,791
1,546 3,092 3,092 7,731 15,461 30,922 30,922
88,747 22,479 6,137 — — 117,363 118,079
2,902 — — — — 2,902 2,902
34,613 32,530 — 70,000 — 137,143 134,140
$238,240 $86.678 $24.912 $85.429 $15.461 $450,720  $445,765
$(96,895) $43.296 $70,674 $44442  $(4.261) $ 57,256
$(96,895) $(53,599) 17,075 61,517 $57,256
(18.33)% (10.14)% 3.23% 11.64% 10.83%
(19.07)% (10.55)% 3.36% 12.11% 11.27%
59.33% 83.50% 104.88% 114.13%  112.70%
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More More More

thamn than than
1 Year 3 Years 5 Years Greater  Total Fair
1 Year to to to than Amount Value
March 31, 2001 or Less 3 Years 5 Years 15 Years 15 Years (4] 2)3)
Interest-earning assets:
Short-term investments .. $ 114 $ — 5 — s — 5§ — $ 114 $ 114
SECUMHES......ccovvrvrrerrerrericniereenianinieninnnas 11,463 496 957 6,091 — 19,007 20,042
Mortgage-backed
securities............... — — —_ 3,780 10,697 14,477 14,659
Stock in FHLB-Boston .. 8,455 — — — — 8,455 8,455
Investment in B.O.L.I. 8,269 — — — — 8,269 8.269
. 140,374 97,049 79,693 97.312 7.166 421,594 418,122
Total interest-earning assets................ $168,675 § 97,545 $80,650 $107,183 $17,863 $471916 $469.661
Interest-bearing Habilities:
Money market accounts.. $ 62,285 § 11,678 $ 3,894 L | J— $ 77,857 $ 77.857
Regular savings accounts... . 4,205 8,409 8,409 7,008 — 28,031 28,031
NOW accounts............ . 1,507 3,015 3,015 7,536 15,073 30,146 30,146
Certificate accounts..... . 109,379 11,839 2,708 1,582 — 125,508 126,789
Other borrowed funds. . 2,025 — — — — 2,025 2,025
FHLB advances ...........coocceeemurinrennnn. 68,931 17,638 1,570 70,000 — 158,139 156.439
Total interest-bearing ’
Habilities......oovvermreecenrrenennrinnisiens $248332 $52,579 $19,596 $86,126 $15073  $421,706  $421.287
Interest-earning assets less
interest-bearing liabilities....................... $(79.657)  $44966  $61.054 821057 $279¢ §50210
Cumulative interest-rate
SEDSIIVIY ZAP crevvvvveveseenveesesssssmeeseress 8(79.657)  $(34.691)  $26.363 $47.420  $50.210
Cumulative interest-rate gap as
a percentage of total assets..........ocoveeenee (16.19)% (7.05)% 537% 9.65% 10.21%
Cumulative interest-rate gap as
a percentage of total interest-
€AITING ASSELS .ovvvvievceiscieieecsiiiereeeseiees (16.87)% (7.35)% 5.59% 10.05% 10.64%
Cumulative interest-earning .
assets as a percentage of
cumulative interest-bearing
HHabilIES ..o 6793% 88.48% 108.23% 111.67% 11191%

(1) Excludes nonaccrual loans.

(2) Fair value of securities, including mortgage-backed securities, is based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not
available, fair value is based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments. Fair value of loans is, depending on the type of loan, based on
carrying values or estimates based on discounted cash flow analyses. Fair value of deposit liabilities are either based on carrying amounts or
estimates based on a discounted cash flow calculation. Fair values for FHLB advances are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis that
applies interest rates concurrently being offered on advances to a schedule of aggregated expected menthly maturities on FHLB advances.

(3) Fair value of loans includes nonaccrual loans and allowance for loan losses.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example,
although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react to different
degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may
fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes
in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable rate loans, have features which restrict changes in
interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of change in interest
rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating
the table. Finally, the ability of many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate loans may decrease in the event of an
interest rate increase.

Item 8. Fimancial Statememnts and Supplementary Data.
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Bay State Bancorp, Inc.
Brookline, Massachusetts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPCRT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2002. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the
consolidated resuits of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
March 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

SHATSWELL, MacLECD & COMPANY, P.C.
West Peabody, Massachusetts
April 19, 2002
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BAY STATE BANCCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

ASSETS 2002 2001
Cash and due from banks $ 10,209 $ 9,188
Interest bearing deposits 769 797
Short-term investments 6,339 114
Cash and cash equivalents 17,317 10,099
Investments in available-for-sale securities (at fair value) 34,804 34,356
Investments in held-to-maturity securities (fair values of $177 as of
March 31, 2002 and $345 as of March 31, 2001) 177 336
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston, at cost 8,455 8,455
Loans, net of the allowance for loan losses of $4,535 as of
March 31, 2002 and $4,258 as of March 31, 2001 445,547 417,704
Loans held-for-sale 813 --
Premises and equipment, net of depreciation and amortization 3,036 3,222
Investment in bank owned life insurance 8,643 8,269
Accrued interest receivable 3,256 3,268
Deferred tax asset, net 2,675 2,816
Other assets 3,992 3,332
Total assets $528,715 $491,857

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHCLDERS' EQUITY

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing $ 17,951 $ 11,721
Interest-bearing 310,675 261,542
Total deposits 328,626 273,263
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 137,143 158,139
Other borrowed funds 2,902 2,025
Other liabilities 5,013 4,670
Total liabilities 473,684 438,097

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 11,000,000 shares;

issued 2,535,232 shares 25 25
Paid-in capital 49,657 49,275
Retained earnings 28,896 24,382
Accumulated other comprehensive income 448 617
Unearned ESOP shares, 100,742 and 121,024 shares (2,015) (2,420)
Treasury stock at cost, 886,691 and 769,689 shares (21,168) (16,911)
Unearned shares, stock-based incentive plan, 36,230 and 53,917 shares (812) (1,208)

Total stockholders' equity 55,031 53,760
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $528,715 $491,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BAY STATE BANCCRP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

2002 2001 2000
Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees on loans $35,313  $34,308  $28,214
Interest and dividends on securities:
Taxable 2,666 2,762 2,662
Other interest 70 150 97
Total interest and dividend income 38,049 37,220 30,973
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits 10,043 11,286 8,884
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances 7,621 9,714 7,075
Interest on securities sold under agreements to repurchase -~ 50 258
Interest on other borrowed funds 70 135 138
Total interest expense 17,734 21,185 16,355
Net interest and dividend income 20,315 16,035 14,618
Provision for loan losses 312 460 875
Net interest and dividend income after provision for loan losses 20,003 15,575 13,743
Other income:
Other fees and charges 541 493 325
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 125 21 7
Net gain (loss) on trading securities (103) (224) 287
Gain (loss) on sales of available-for-sale securities, net 193 (64) --
Net increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies 374 381 334
Other income 333 226 153
Total other income 1,463 833 1,106
Other expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 7,629 6,576 6,842
Occupancy expense 1,054 951 761
Equipment expense ‘ 562 558 438
Advertising 555 479 538
Data processing 446 354 274
Professional fees 454 309 626
Other expense 1,394 1,240 1,133
Total other expense 12,094 10,467 10,612
Income before income taxes 9,372 5,941 4,237
Income taxes 3,737 2,329 1,482
Net income $ 5635 §3612 § 2755
Earnings per share
Earnings per common share, basic 3.58 $ 2.08 1.34
Earnings per common share, assuming dilution 336 2.02 1.34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BAY STATE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(In Thousands)
2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 5635 $ 3,612 $ 2,735
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of ESOP shares
released for allocation 304 85 (10)
Reduction in unearned ESOP shares 405 406 406
Earned compensation on stock-based incentive plan 349 420 432
(Gain) loss on sales of available-for-sale securities, net (193) 64 -~
Amortization (accretion) of securities, net (32) (50) (167)
Net change in trading securities 44 155 (909)
Net (increase) decrease in loans held-for-sale (813) -- 321
Provision for loan losses 312 460 875
Increase (decrease) in unearned income, net 59 46 (42)
Depreciation and amortization 454 435 328
Gain on sales of other real estate owned -- (12) --
Net increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies (374) (381) (334)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 12 (798) (550)
Gain on sale of other assets (73) -- --
(Increase) decrease in other assets (560) 29 321
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 251 278 (647)
Increase in other liabilities 317 53 1,467
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,097 4,802 4,246
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (8,593) (9,415)  (23,626)
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities 8,194 6,452 14,064
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 197 3,681 --
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities 159 191 427
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston stock -- (404) (4,201)
Loan originations and principal collections, net 14,908 (1,114)  (58,087)
Purchases of loans (43,122)  (24,071) (31,529)
Capital expenditures (268) (583) (842)
Proceeds from sale of equipment -- 4 --
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned -- 142 --
Distribution to Rabbi Trust (163) (163) (583)
Investment in bank owned life insurance -- -- (1,500)
Proceeds from sale of other assets 92 - -
Net cash used in investing activities (28,596)  (25,280) (105,877)
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BAY STATE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(Continued)

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW and savings accounts
Net increase (decrease) in certificate accounts
Repayment of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Net increase (decrease) in other borrowed funds
Purchases of treasury stock
Dividends paid on common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Loans transferred to other real estate owned

2002 2001 2000

63,508 21,069 17,341
(8,145) 4,850 11,048

(396,235) (291,034) (194,498)
375239 301,646 264,906
- (5,630) 5,630
877 (482) 2,507
(4,934)  (5,004)  (8,800)
(1,121) (830) (618)

528 - -

29,717 24,585 97,516

7,218 4,107 (4,115)
10,099 5992 10,107
$ 17317 $ 10,099 $ 5992

$17,984  $21,142  $15929
3,709 2262 1,634
- 68 62

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




BAYSTATE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(Dollars in Thousands)

NOTE 1 - NATURE CF OPERATIONS

Bay State Bancorp, Inc. (Company) is a Delaware corporation that was organized to become the holding company
of Bay State Federal Savings Bank (Bank). The Company's primary purpose is to act as the holding company for
the Bank.

The Bank was incorporated in 1920 and is headquartered in Brookline, Massachuseits. The Bank operates its
business from six banking offices located in Massachusetis. The reporting entity is Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and its
wholly owned subsidiaries, Bay State Funding Corporation and Bay State Federal Savings Bank and the Bank's
wholly owned subsidiaries, BSF Service Corporation, Bay State Federal Savings Securities Corporation and Bay
Leaf Securities Corporation.

The Company provides a full range of banking services to individual and business customers in eastern
Massachusetts. The Company is subject toc competition from other financial institutions doing business in eastern

Massachusetts.

NOTE 2 - ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and predominant practices within the banking industry. The
consolidated financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The significant accounting
policies are summarized below to assist the reader in betier understanding the consolidated financial statements and
other data contained herein.

USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from the estimates.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and
its wholly owned subsidiaries Bay State Funding Corporation and Bay State Federal Savings Bank and the
Bank's wholly owned subsidiaries, BSF Service Corporation, Bay State Federal Savings Securities
Corporation and Bay Leaf Securities Corporation. BSF Service Corporation is a subsidiary which was
formed for the purpose of real estate development activities. Bay State Funding Corporation was
established to lend funds to the Company sponsored employee stock ownership plan and related trust for
the purchase of stock in the initial public offering. Bay State Federal Savings Securities Corporation and
Bay Leaf Securities Corporation were established in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 to hold securities
for the Bank. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash items, due from
banks, and short-term investments such as Federal Home Loan Bank overnight account, federal funds sold
and shares of the Co-operative Central Bank Liquidity Fund and money market mutual funds. Cash and
due from banks as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 includes $1,382 and $1,546, respectively which is subject
to withdrawal and usage restrictions to satisfy the reserve requirements of the Federal Reserve Bank.

SECURITIES:

Investments in debt securities are adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts
calculated using the interest method. Gains or losses on sales of investment securities are computed on a
specific identification basis.

The Company classifies debt and equity securities into one of three categories: available-for-sale, held-to-
maturity or trading. This security classification may be modified after acquisition only under certain
specified conditions. In general, securities may be classified as held-to-maturity only if the Company has
the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Trading securities are defined as those bought and
held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term. All other securities must be classified as
available-for-sale.

-- Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Unrealized holding
gains and losses are not included in earnings, but are reported as a net amount (less expected
tax) in a separate component of capital until realized.

--  Held-to-maturity securities are measured at amortized cost in the balance sheet. Unrealized
holding gains and losses are not included in earnings or in a separate component of capital.
They are merely disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

-- Trading securities are carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Unrealized holding gains and
losses for trading securities are included in earnings.

Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost that are
deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses.

LOANS:

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or payoff are reported at their outstanding principal balances reduced by amounts due to
borrowers on unadvanced loans, any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees or
costs on originated loans, or unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans.

Interest on loans is recognized on a simple interest basis.

Cash receipts of interest income on impaired loans is credited to principal to the extent necessary to
eliminate doubt as to the collectibility of the net carrying amount of the loan. Some or all of the cash
receipts of interest income on impaired loans is recognized as interest income if the remaining net carrying
amount of the loan is deemed to be fully collectible. When recognition of interest income on an impaired
loan on a cash basis is appropriate, the amount of income that is recognized is limited to that which would
have been accrued on the net carrying amount of the loan at the contractual interest rate. Any cash interest
payments received in excess of the limit and not applied to reduce the net carrying amount of the loan are
recorded as recoveries of charge-offs until the charge-offs are fully recovered.




ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES:

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision
for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management
believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to
the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature
and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay,
estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is
inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information
becomes available.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal
and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment
shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment
delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances
surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest
owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s
obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment disclosures.

LOANS HELD-FOR-SALE:

Loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or estimated market value in the aggregate. Net
unrealized losses are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT:

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Cost and
related allowances for depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment retired or otherwise
disposed of are removed from the respective accounts with any gain or loss included in income or expense.
Depreciation and amortization are calculated principally on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

BANK-OWNED LIFE INSURANCE:

The Company invested in bank-owned life insurance (BOLI) to help finance the cost of certain employee
benefit plan expenses. BOLI represents life insurance on the lives of certain employees through insurance
companies. The Company is the beneficiary of the insurance policies. Increases in the cash value of the
policies, as well as insurance proceeds received, are recorded in other income, and are not subject to
income taxes as long as those policies are not surrendered for the cash value prior to the death of the
individual employees.




OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED AND IN-SUBSTANCE FORECLOSURES:

Other real estate owned includes properties acquired through foreclosure and properties classified as in-
substance foreclosures in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 15,
"Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for Troubled Debt Restructuring.” These properties are carried at
the lower of cost or estimated fair value less estimated costs to sell. Any writedown from cost to estimated
fair value required at the time of foreclosure or classification as in-substance foreclosure is charged to the
allowance for loan losses. Expenses incurred in connection with maintaining these assets, subsequent
writedowns and gains or losses recognized upon sale are included in other expense.

The Company classifies loans as in-substance repossessed or foreclosed if the Company receives physical
possession of the debtor’s assets regardless of whether formal foreclosure proceedings take place.

ADVERTISING:
The Company directly expenses costs associated with advertising as they are incurred.
INCOME TAXES:

The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary differences between the accounting basis and the
tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when the
amounts related to such temporary differences are realized or settled.

PENSION:
Pension costs are funded as accrued.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments," requires that the Company disclose estimated fair value for its financial instruments. Fair
value methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash
equivalents approximate those assets' fair values.

Securities (including mortgage-backed securities): Fair values for securities are based on quoted market
prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market
prices of comparable instruments.

Loans receivable: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit
risk, fair values are based on carrying values. The fair values for other loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates cuirently being offered for loans with similar terms to
borrowers of similar credit quality.

Loans held-for-sale: Fair values for mortgages held-for-sale are estimated based on outstanding investor
commitments, or in the absence of such commitments, are based on current investor yield requirements.

Accrued interest receivable: The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair
value.

Deposit liabilities: The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking,
passbook savings and money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand
at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate certificate accounts are
estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on
certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on certificate accounts.
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Federal Home Loan Bank Advances: Fair values for Federal Home Loan Bank advances are estimated
using a discounted cash flow technique that applies interest rates cusrently being offered on advances to a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on Federal Home Loan Bank advances.

Securities scld under agreements to repurchase: The carrying amounts of securities sold under agreements
to repurchase approximate their fair values.

Other borrowed funds: Fair values of other borrowed funds are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on the Company's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing
arrangements.

Off-balance sheet instruments: The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees
currently charged to enter similar agreements, taking intc account the remaining terms of the agreements
and the present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments and the
unadvanced portion of loans, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates
and the committed rates. The fair value of letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar
agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate them or ctherwise settle the obligation with the
counterparties at the reporting date.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):

Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential
dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted
into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the
entity. Unallocated shares held by the ESOP and unissued restricted stock are not included in the weighted
average number of common stock for either basic or diluted earnings per share calculations.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. This Statement establishes accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts, and requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as assets or
liabilities in the balance sheet and measure them at fair value. If certain conditions are met, an entity may
elect to designate a derivative as follows: (a) a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment, (b) 2 hedge of the exposure to variable
cash flows of a forecasted transaction, or (c) a hedge of the foreign currency exposure of an unrecognized
firm commitment, an available-for-sale security, a foreign currency denominated forecasted transaction, or
a net investment in a foreign operation. The Statement generally provides for matching the timing of the
recognition of the gain or loss on derivatives designated as hedging instruments with the recognition of the
changes in the fair value of the item being hedged. Depending on the type of hedge, such recognition will
be in either net income or other comprehensive income. For a derivative not designated as a hedging
instrument, changes in fair value will be recognized in net income in the period of change. The adoption of
this Statement did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.




FASB has issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities”. This Statement replaces SFAS No. 125, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” and rescinds SFAS Statement No. 127,
“Deferral of the Effective Date of Certain Provisions of FASB Statement No. 125”. SFAS No. 140
provides accounting and reporting standards for transfers and servicing of financial assets and
extinguishments of liabilities. This Statement provides consistent standards for distinguishing transfers of
financial assets that are sales from transfers that are secured borrowings. This Statement is effective for
transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities occurring after March 31, 2001;
however, the disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2000. The
adoption of this Statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”. This Statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for business combinations and supercedes APB Opinion No. 16,
“Business Combinations”, and SFAS No. 38, “Accounting for Preacquisition Contingencies of Purchased
Enterprises”. Under Opinion 16, business combinations were accounted for using one of two methods, the
pooling-of-interests method or the purchase method. All business combinations in the scope of SFAS No.
141 are to be accounted for using one method - the purchase method. The provisions of SFAS No. 141
apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and to all business combinations accounted
for using the purchase method for which the date of acquisition is July 1, 2001, or later.

The adoption of SFAS No. 141 will have no immediate effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements since it had no pending business combinations as of March 31, 2002 or as of the date of the
issuance of these consolidated financial statements. If the Company consummates business combinations
in the future, any such combinations that would have been accounted for by the pooling-of-interests
method under Opinion 16 will be accounted for under the purchase method and the difference in
accounting could have a substantial impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Cther Intangible Assets”. This Statement
addresses financial accounting and reporting for required goodwill and other intangible assets and
supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets”. The initial recognition and measurement provisions
of SFAS No. 142 apply to intangible assets which are defined as assets (not including financial assets) that
lack physical substance. The term “intangible assets” is used in SFAS No. 142 to refer to intangible assets
other than goodwill. The accounting for a recognized intangible asset is based on its useful life. An
intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized; an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not
amortized. An intangible asset that is subject to amortization shall be reviewed for impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to Be Disposed of.”

SFAS No. 142 provides that goodwill shall not be amortized. Goodwill is defined as the excess of the cost
of an acquired entity over the net of the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed. SFAS
No. 142 further provides that goodwill shall be tested for impairment at a level of reporting referred to as a
reporting unit. Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its
implied fair value.

SFAS No. 142 is effective as follows:

All of the provisions of SFAS No. 142 shall be applied in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001,
to all goodwill and intangible assets recognized in an entity’s statement of financial position at the
beginning of that fiscal year, regardless of when those previously recognized assets were initially
recognized.
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The Company believes that the impact of SFAS No. 142 on its future consolidated financial statements will
be immaterial.

RECLASSIFICATION:

Certain amounts in the prior years have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year's statement
presentation.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets accerding to management’s intent.
The amortized cost basis of securities and their approximate fair values are as follows:

Gains In Losses In
Accumulated Accumulated
Amortized Other Gther
Cost Comprehensive Comprehensive  Fair
Basis Income Income Value
(In Thousands)
Available-for-sale securities:
March 31, 2002:
Marketable equity securities $11,184 $1,289 $ 18 $12,455
Mortgage-backed securities 6,977 1i¢ - 7,087
Capital Trust preferred securities 5,069 58 2 5,125
Corporate bonds and notes 6,454 - 214 6,240
Preferred stocks - 1,500 - 93 1,407
Trust preferred stock 5,530 109 __ 10 5,629
36,714 1,566 337 37,943
Money market mutual funds included
in cash and cash equivalents (3,139) -- - (3,139)
$33,575 $1,566 $337 $34,804
March 31, 2001:
Marketable equity securities $ 7,610 $1,192 $ 34 $ 8,768
Mortgage-backed securities 14,141 175 2 14,314
Capital Trust preferred securities 2,022 -- 49 1,973
Corporate bonds and notes 1,452 -- 44 1,408
Preferred stocks 1,500 2 35 1,467
Trust preferred stocks 5,537 40 40 5,537
Government agency securities 1,000 - 1,003
33,262 1,412 204 34,470
Money market mutual funds included
in cash and cash equivalents (114) - - (114)
$33,148 31,412 $204 334,356
Gross Gross
Net Unrecognized  Unrecognized
Carrying Holding Holding Fair
Amount Gains Losses Value
(In Thousands)
Held-to-maturity securities:
March 31, 2002:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 177 - $ - $ 177
March 31, 2001:
Mortgage-backed securities $_ 336 3.9 3 -- § 345




The scheduled maturities of debt securities were as follows as of March 31, 2002:

Available-For-Sale Held-To-Maturity

Net Carrying
Fair Amount and
Value Fair Value
' (In Thousands)
Due after five years through ten years $ 4,950 $ -
Due after ten years 6,415 -
Mortgage-backed securities 7,087 177
$18,452 8177

As of March 31, 2002 and 2001, securities with carrying amounts totaling $2,433 and $1,003, respectively were
pledged to secure treasury tax and loan deposits.

In the year ended March 31, 2002, proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities amounted to $197. Gross
realized gains on those sales amounted to $193. In the year ended March 31, 2001, proceeds from sales of
available-for-sale securities amounted to $3,681. Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on those sales
amounted to $431 and $495, respectively. In the year ended March 31, 2000 there were no sales of available-for-
sale securities.

The tax expense applicable to the net realized gain in the year ended March 31, 2002 amounted to $79. The tax benefit
applicable to the net realized loss in the year ended March 31, 2001 amounted to $18.

For information on trading securities, see Note 13.

The aggregate amortized cost basis and fair value of securities of issuers which exceeded 10% of stockholders’ equity
were as follows as of March 31, 2002:

Amortized
Cost Fair
_Basis Value
Issuer (In Thousands)
Asset Management Fund $7,725 $7,708
NOTE 4 - LCANS
Loans consisted of the following as of March 31:
2002 2001
(In Thousands)
Mortgage loans:
Residential - secured by 1-4 family $187,801 $205,284
Equity lines 11,939 11,819
Residential - secured by multi-family 102,440 87,040
Construction and development 15,428 11,165
Commercial real estate 117,341 98,566
Total mortgage loans 434,949 413,874
Commercial loans 11,564 3,893
Other loans:
Loans secured by deposit accounts 230 233
Other consumer loans 3,600 4,164
Total other loans 3,830 4,397
Total principal balance 450,343 422,164
Allowance for loan losses (4,535) (4,258)

Unearned income, net

Loans, net

(261) (202)
(4,796) (4,460)
$445,547 $417.704




Certain directors and executive officers of the Company and companies in which they have significant ownership
interest were customers of the Bank during the year ended March 31, 2002. Total loans to such persons and their
companies amounted to $6,551 as of March 31, 2002. During the year ended March 31, 2002 principal payments
and advances totaled $139 and $665, respectively.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows for the years ended March 31:

2002 2001 2000
. (In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $4,258 $3,915 $3,027
Loans charged off (49) (129) (1)
Provision for loan losses 312 460 875
Recoveries of loans previously charged off 14 12 14
Balance at end of period $4,535 34,258 33915

As of March 31, 2002 and 2001 and in the year ended March 31, 2002, there were no loans which company
management identified as impaired. The average recorded investment in impaired loans in the years ending March 31,
2002 and 2001 was zero and $150, respectively.

In the fiscal years ending March 31, 1996 to 2002 the Company sold mortgage loans and retzined the servicing
rights. The beginning effective fiscal year of SFAS No. 122 for the Company was April 1, 1996 to March 31, 1997.
The amount that would be allocated to those rights under SFAS No. 125 is not material and has not been recognized
in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001.

NOTE S - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

The following is a summary of premises and equipment as of March 31:

Estimated
Useful
2002 2001 Life
(In Thousands)

Land § 355 § 355
Building and improvements 2,066 2,066 25-50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,574 2,432 5-10 years
Leasehold improvements 664 601 5-10 years
Construction in progress 90 27

5,749 5,481
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,713) (2,259

3,036 $3,222

NOTE 6 - BEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposit accounts in denominations of $100 or more as of March 31, 2002 and 2001
was approximately $27,536 and $30,938, respectively.

For time deposits as of March 31, 2002, the scheduled maturities for each of the following five years ended
March 31 are:

(In Thousands)
2003 3 88,747
2004 16,841
2005 5,638
2006 3,599

2007

2,538

$117,363

Deposits from related parties held by the Company as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 amounted to $1,734 and $1,112,
respectively.
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NOTE 7 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK (FHLB) ADVANCES

The Bank is a member of the FHLB of Boston and as such is required to invest in $100 par value stock in the
amount of 1% of its outstanding home loans or 5% of its outstanding advances from the FHLB or 1% of 30% of
total assets, whichever is highest. When such stock is redeemed, the Company receives from the FHLB an amount
equal to the par value of the stock.

Advances consist of funds borrowed from the FHLB.

Maturities of advances from the FHLB are summarized as follows:

AMOUNT
Years or years ending March 31 (In Thousands)
2003 § 48,097
2004 6,261
2005 12,785
After March 31, 2007 70,000
Total $137,143

As of March 31, 2002, the following advances from the FHLB were redeemable at par at the option of the FHLB:

MATURITY DATE OPTIONAL REDEMPTION DATE AMOUNT
(In Thousands)
October 29, 2004 April 29, 2002 and quarterly thereafter $ 5,000
June 21, 2007 through March 21, 2011 April 8, 2002 through June 21, 2002
and quarterly thereafter 70,000

Amortizing advances are being repaid in equal monthly payments and are being amortized from the date of the
advance to the maturity date on a direct reduction basis.

Advances are secured by the Company’s stock in that institution, its residential real estate mortgage portfolio and
the remaining U.S. government and agency obligations not otherwise pledged.

At March 31, 2002, the interest rates on FHLB advances ranged from 1.86% to 7.31%. AtMarch 31, 2002, the
weighted average interest rate on FHLB advances was 4.73%.

NOTE 8 - OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Other borrowed funds consist of federal funds purchased and treasury tax and loan deposits and generally are repaid
within one to 120 days from the transaction date.




NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES

The components of the income tax expense are as follows for the years ended March 31:

2002 2001 2000
(In Thousands)
Current:
Federal $2,626 $1,563 $1,655
State 860 488 474
3,486 2,051 2,129
Deferred: .
Federal 204 68 (456)
State (33) 23 (191
171 91 (647)
Valuation allowance 80 187 --
251 278 (647)
Total income tax expense $3,737 $2,329 $1,482

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rates and the effective tax rates are
summarized as follows for the years ended March 31:

2002 2001 2000
Federal income tax at statutory rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
Increase (decrease) in tax resulting from:
Cash surrender value of life insurance ' (1.4) (2.2) 2.7)
Other 5 (1.0) (7
Valuation allowance 1.0 31 --
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit 5.8 53 44
Effective tax rates 39.9% 39.2% 35.0%

The Company had gross deferred tax assets and gross deferred tax liabilities as follows as of March 31:

2002 2001
(In Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $1,833 $1,714
Deferred loan fees 9 11
Contribution carryover 417 690
ESQOP expense 124 124
Accrued retirement expense 165 152
Minimum SERP liability adjustment 186 63
Accrued deferred compensation 664 522
Accrued stock-based incentive plan awards 227 307
Other 21 115
Gross deferred tax assets 3,646 3,698
Valuation allowance (267) (187)
3,379 3,511
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation (191) (195)
Net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities (513) (500)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (704) {695)
Net deferred tax assets $2,675 $2,816




In 1998 the Company established a charitable foundation (“Foundation). The contribution in 1998 of the
Company’s common stock to the Foundation is tax deductible, subject to a limitation based on 10% of the
Company’s annual taxable income. The Company, however, is able to carry forward any unused portion of the
deduction for five years following the contribution. Upon funding the Foundation, the Company recognized an
expense in the full amount of the contribution, offset in part by the corresponding tax deduction.

Based on the Company's historical and current pretax earnings, management believes it is more likely than not that
the Company will realize the net deferred tax asset existing as of March 31, 2002 and 2001. Management believes
that existing net deductible temporary differences which give rise to the net deferred tax asset will reverse during
periods in which the Company generates net taxable income. In addition, gross deductible temporary differences
are expected to reverse in periods during which offsetting gross taxable temporary differences are expected to
reverse. Factors beyond management's control, such as the general state of the economy and real estate values, can
affect future levels of taxable income and no assurance can be given that sufficient taxable income will be generated
to fully absorb gross deductible temporary differences. '

In prior years, the Bank was allowed a special tax-basis bad debt deduction under certain provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code. As a result, retained earnings of the Bank as of March 31, 2002 includes approximately $5,812,000
for which federal and state income taxes have not been provided. If the Bank no longer qualifies as a bank as
defined in certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, this amount will be subject to recapture in taxable
income ratably over six (6) years, subject to a combined federal and state tax rate of approximately 41%.

NOTE 10 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and
possibly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. Their capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to adjusted total assets (as defined)
and Tangible capital (as defined) to Tangible assets (as defined). Management believes, as of March 31, 2002, that
the Company and the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
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As of March 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the Office of Thrift Supervision categorized the Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized
the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, Tier 1 and Tangible capital ratios as set forth
in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the
institution’s category.

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes: Action Provisions:
Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollar amounts in Thousands)
As of March 31, 2002:
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $59,400  14.58%  $32,584 >8.0% N/A N/A
Bank 47,073 11.72 32,137 >8.0 $40,171 >10.0%
Core Capital (to Adjusted Tangible Assets):
Consolidated 54,315 10.27 21,147 >4.0 N/A N/A
Bank 41,940 8.02 20,923 >4.0 26,154 >5.0
Tangible Capital (to Tangible Assets):
Consolidated 54,315 10.27 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Bank 41,940 8.02 7,846 >1.5 N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated 54,315 13.34 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Bank 41,940 1044 N/A N/A 24,103 >6.0

As of March 31, 2001:
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):

Consolidated 57,828  16.00 28,912 >8.0 N/A N/A

Bank 46,634  13.11 28,460 >8.0 35,575 >10.0
Core Capital (to Adjusted Tangible Assets):

Consolidated 53,143  10.81 19,669 >4.0 N/A N/A

Bank 41,823 8.61 19,432 >4.0 24291 >5.0
Tangible Capital (to Tangible Assets):

Consolidated 53,143  10.81 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Bank 41,823 8.61 7,287 >1.5 N/A N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):

Consolidated 53,143 14.71 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Bank 41,823  11.76 N/A N/A 21,345 >6.0

The Bank may not declare or pay dividends on its stock if such declaration and payment would violate statutory or
regulatory requirements.

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

All eligible officers and employees are included in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan provided by the
Company as a participating employer in the Financial Institutions Retirement Fund (Fund), a multi-employer plan as
defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87. Employees are eligible to participate in the
Retirement Plan after the completion of 12 consecutive months of employment with the Company and the
attainment of age 21. Contributions are based on individual employers' experience. The Company contributed
$326 and $206 to the plan during the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan, the Financial Institutions Thrift Plan (Thrift Plan), covering
substantially all of its employees. Employees are eligible to participate in the Thrift Plan upon the completion of 12
months of continuous employment with the Company (during which period they complete at least 1,000 hours of
service) and the attainment of age 21. Thrift Plan contributions made by the Company were $68, $67 and $58 for
the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company has a deferred compensation benefit equalization plan (BEP Plan) for officers and employees
designated by management. During the year ended March 31, 2001 the BEP Plan was modified. The BEP Plan is
now subject to SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 132 and therefore, the following disclosures are presented for the years
ended March 31:
2002 2001
{Dollar amounts in Thousands)
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $2,631 $2,358
Service cost 94 96
Interest cost 186 177
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (209) --
Change in unrecognized net loss 66 --
Benefit obligation at end of year 2,768 2,631
Fair value of plan assets at beginning and end of year 0 0
Funded status (2,768) (2,631)
Unrecognized net loss 842 896
Additional minimum liability (453) (153)
Net amount recognized $(2,379) $(1.888)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
Accrued pension cost $(1,926) $(1,734)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (453) (154)
Net amount recognized $(2.379) $(1.888)
Weighted average assumption as of March 31
Discount rate 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.50% 5.50%

Components of net periodic (benefit) cost:

Service cost § 94 § 96
Interest cost 186 177
Amortization of unrecognized loss 119 110
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (209) -
Effect of modification of plan -- (523)
Net periodic pension (benefit) cost 150 $ (140)

In the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 the Company distributed $163, $163 and $583, respectively to a
Rabbi Trust in connection with the deferred compensation benefit equalization plan. This asset has been included in
the Company's balance sheets as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 under cther assets. The investment is included in
assets because it is available to the general creditors of the Company in the event of the Company's insolvency.

The investment in the Rabbi Trust as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 consisted of cash surrender value of life insurance
and mutual funds classified as trading securities and is included in other assets. The investment as of March 31, 2002
and 2001 was carried at its fair value of $2,176 and $2,100, respectively which includes net unrealized holding losses
of $2 and $206, respectively.

F-21




NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company leases space for three branches, two administrative offices and equipment which expire between 2002
and 2009. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments required under operating leases
that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of March 31, 2002:

Year ended March 31, (In Thousands)

2003 3 594
2004 568
2005 463
2006 346
2007 310
Thereafter 132

Total minimum lease payments $2.413

The rental expense for all operating leases for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $685, $650 and
$500, respectively. .

NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is party to financial insttuments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to originate loans, standby
letters of credit and unadvanced funds on loans. The instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk
in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the
extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the cther party to the financial instrument
for loan commitments and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.
The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-
balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to originate loans are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each
customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the
Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held
varies, but may include secured interests in mortgages, accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and
equipment and income-producing properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance by a
customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved
in extending loan facilities to customers.

F-22




The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments, all of which are held or issued for purposes other
than trading, are as follows as of March 31:

2002 2001
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(In Thousands)
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,317 $ 17,317 $ 10,099 $ 10,099
Trading securities 1,910 1,910 1,954 1,954
Available-for-sale securities 34,804 34,804 34,356 34,356
Held-to-maturity securities 177 177 336 345
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank
of Boston 8,455 8,455 8,455 8,455
Loans, net 445,547 448,527 417,704 418,122
Loans held-for-sale 813 816 - -
Accrued interest receivable 3,256 3,256 3,268 3,268
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 328,626 329,341 273,263 274,545
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 137,143 134,140 158,139 156,439
Other borrowed funds 2,902 2,902 2,025 2,025

The carrying amounts of financial instruments shown in the above tables are included in the consolidated balance
sheets under the indicated captions except that trading securities are included in other assets. Accounting policies
related to financial instruments are described in Note 2.

Notional amounts of financial instrument liabilities with off-balance sheet credit risk are as follows as of March 31:

2002 2001
Notional Notional
Amount Amount

{In Thousands)
Commitments to originate loans $16,189 $14,425
Unadvanced funds on loans:

Residential loans 707 950
Multi-family loans 2,788 2,459
Equity loans 7,086 5,839
Commercial loans 7,986 4,062
Construction and land development loans 9,594 6,154
Consumer loans 30 6
Standby letters of credit 208 32
$44,588 $£33.927

There is no material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of loan commitments and
unadvanced portions of loans.

The Company has no derivative financial instruments subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities."

NOTE 14 - CONCENTRATIONS CF CREDIT RISK

Most of the Bank's business activity is with customers located within the state. There are no concentrations of credit
to borrowers that have similar economic characteristics. The majority of the Bank’s loan pertfolic is comprised of
loans collateralized by real estate located in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
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NOTE 15 - LIQUIDATION ACCOUNT

At the time of the conversion of the Bank from a federally-chartered mutual savings bank to a federally-chartered
capital stock savings bank, the Bank established a liquidation account in an amount equal to its equity as reflected in
the latest balance sheet used in the conversion prospectus. The liguidation account is maintzined for the benefit of
eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who continue to maintain their accounts at the
Bank after the conversion. The liquidation account is reduced annually to the extent that eligible account holders
and supplemental eligible account holders have reduced their qualifying deposits as of each anniversary date.
Subsequent increases will not restore an eligible account holder’s or supplemental eligible account heolder’s interest
in the liquidation account. In the event of a complete liquidation of the Bank, each eligible account holder and
supplemental eligible account holder will be entitled to receive a distribution from the liquidation account in an
amount proportionate to the current adjusted qualifying balances for accounts then held.

The balance of the liquidation account was $3,696 and $4,527 as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NOTE 16 - STOCK COMPENSATICN PLANS

In July 1999, the stockholders of the Company approved the Bay State Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan which
reserved for grants 120,423 shares of Company stock. To date no stock cptions have been granted under the 1999 Plan.

The Company’s 1998 Stock-Based Incentive Plan (Plan) includes grants of options to purchase Company stock and
awards of Company stock. The Company applies APB Opinion 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its
Plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its stock options granted. The compensation cost
that has been charged against income for its stock awards was $154, $345 and 3842 for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company awarded 97,609 shares in the year ended March 31, 1999, with a
weighted-average fair value per share of $19.75. Had compensation cost for this plan been determined based on the
fair value at the grant and award dates under the plan consistent with the method of FASB Statement 123, the
Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2002 2001 2000
Net income As reported $5,635 $3.612 $2,755
Pro forma $5,229 $3,210 $2,359
Basic earnings per share As reported $3.58 $2.08 $1.34
Pro forma $3.32 $1.84 $1.14
Fully diluted earnings per share As reported $3.36 $2.02 $1.34
Pro forma $3.12 $1.79 $1.14

The number of shares of common stock reserved for grants and awards is 354,932, consisting of 253,523 shares for
stock options and 101,409 shares for stock awards. All employees and outside directors of the Company are eligible
to receive awards.

The Company determines the exercise price of stock options but such exercise price shall not be less than 100% of
the fair market value of the common stock of the Company at the date of the grant. The Company determines the
term during which a participant may exercise a stock option, but in no event may a participant exercise a stock option
more than ten years from the date of grant. The Company determines the vesting schedule for the stock options.
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions used for stock option grants in the years ended March 31:

2002 2001 2000
Dividend yield - 1.90% --
Expected life - 10 years --
Expected volatility -- 29% --
Risk-free interest rate -~ 6.44% --

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options as of March 31, and changes during the years then ended is
presented below:

2002 2001 2000
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at

beginning of year 253,023 $19.52 230,699 $19.75 242,550 $19.75
Granted -- 23,824 $17.15 --
Exercised (27,775) $19.02 -- --
Forfeited -- (1,500) $16.87 (800) $19.75
Expired - - (11,051) $19.75
Outstanding at .

end of year 225,248 $19.58 253,023 $19.52 230,699 $19.75

Options exercisable

at year-end 145,589 107,070 54,418
Weighted-average

fair value of options

granted during the year $-- $7.14 $--

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted-Average Number
Outstanding Remaining Exercisable
as of 3/31/02 Contractual Life Exercise Price as of 3/31/02 Exercise Price
212,248 6.50 years : $19.75 132,589 $19.75
13,000 8.00 years 16.875 13,000 16.875
225,248 6.59 years $19.58 145,589 $19.49

The Company determines the date on which stock awards granted to a participant vest and any terms or conditions
which must be satisfied prior to the vesting of any stock award. The awards vest in installments over five years.

Under the Plan, the Company may make awards of the common stock of the Company contingent upon the
satisfaction of any conditions related to the performance of the Company. The common stock may be issued
without consideration.
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The First Bankers Trust Company is the Trustee for the Bay State Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Stock-Based Incentive Plan,
as amended and restated. A summary of purchases of the Company’s common stock for issuance of awards under
the Plan is as follows for the years ended March 31:

2002 2001
Number of Number of
Shares Cost Shares Cost

{Dollar amounts in Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year 53,917 $1,208 75,076 $1,681
Vested and distributed 17,687 396 21,159 473

Balance March 31, carried as a negative component

of stockholders’ equity on the balance sheets 36,230 812 53917 31,208

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

On March 27, 1998 (the Conversion date) the Company adopted the Bay State Federal Savings Bank Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) that became effective as of April 1, 1997. On March 27, 1998 the ESCP purchased
202,818 shares of the common stock of the Company. To fund the purchases, the ESOP borrowed $4,056 from Bay
State Funding Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company. The borrowing is at an interest rate of 8.5% and is to be
repaid in ten equal installments of $615 commencing on March 31, 1998 through March 31, 2007. In addition,
dividends paid on unreleased shares are used to reduce the principal balance of the loan. The collateral for the
borrowing is the common stock of the Company purchased by the ESOP. Contributions by the Company to the
ESOP are discretionary, however, the Company intends to make annual contributions to the ESOP in an aggregate
amount at least equal to the principal and interest requirements on the debt. The shares of stock of the Company are
held in a suspense account until released for allocation among participants. The shares will be released annually
from the suspense account and the released shares will be allocated among the participants on the basis of the
participant’s compensation for the year of allocation. As any shares are released from collateral, the Company
-reports compensation expense equal to the current market price of the shares and the shares will be outstanding for
earnings-per-share purposes. The shares not released are reported as unearned ESOP shares in the stockholders’
equity section of the balance sheet. ESOP expense for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $628,
$434 and $357, respectively. The ESCP shares as of March 31, were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Allocated shares 74,149 57,369 39,596
Shares released for allocation 20,282 20,282 20,282
Unreleased shares 100,742 121,024 141,306
Total ESOP shares 195,173 198,675 201,184
(In Thousands)
Fair value of unreleased shares $4,246 $3,498 $2,376

NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of March 31, 2002 159,795 shares of the Company’s common stock were owned by The Bay State Federal
Savings Charitable Foundation (Foundation). The Foundation directors are also officers of, or members of the
Board of the Company or the Bank. In the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 the Bank collected from the
Foundation rent for office space of $8 and $3, respectively. In the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 the
Bank provided to the Foundation administrative services at no charge.

The Bank rents office space from a trust and a corporation, of which, the trustee/officer is a director of the Company.
Rental payments amounted to $499, $470 and $384 for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively.
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NOTE 19 - EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS AND SEVERANCE PLAN

The Bank and the Company entered into employment agreements with its President and Executive Vice President.
The employment agreements provide for the continued payment of specified compensation and benefits for
specified periods. The agreements also provide for termination by the Company for cause (as defined in the
agreements) at any time. The employment agreements provide for the payment, under certain circumstances, of
amounts upon termination following a "change in control" as defined in the agreements. The agreements also
provide for certain payments in the event of the officers' termination for other than cause and in the case of
voluntary termination.

The Bank and the Company entered into change-in-control agreements with certain officers, none of who are
covered by an employment agreement. The agreements provide that in the event voluntary or involuntary
termination follows a change in control of the Bank or the Company, the officer would be entitled to a severance
payment equal to two times or three times (as the case may be) the officers annual compensation.

The Bank's Board of Directors established a severance plan which will provide eligible employees with severance
pay benefits in the event of a change in control of the Bank or the Company. Management personnel with
employment or change in control agreements are not eligible to participate in the severance plan. The benefit is
equal to one-twelfth of annual compensation for each year of service up to a maximum of 199% of annual
compensation.

NOTE 20 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for net
income are as follows:

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
Year ended March 31, 2002
Basic EPS
Net income and income available to common stockholders $5,635 1,575 $3.58
Effect of dilutive securities, options 103
Diluted EPS
Income available to common stockholders and assumed
conversions $5,635 1,678 $3.36
Year ended March 31, 2001
Basic EPS
Net income and income available to common stockholders $3,612 1,740 $2.08
Effect of dilutive securities, options _ 49
Diluted EPS
Income available to common stockholders and assumed
conversions 53,612 1,789 -$2.02
Year ended March 31, 2000
Basic EPS
Net income and income available to common stockholders $2,755 2,063 $1.34
Effect of dilutive securities, options -
Diluted EPS
Income available to common stockholders and assumed
conversions $2,755 2,063 $1.34
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NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are for Bay State Bancorp, Inc. (Parent Company Only) and should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidizries.

BAY STATE BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Balance Sheets

March 31, 2002 and 2001

(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS 2002 2001
Cash or deposit with Bay State Federal Savings Bank $ 3,487 $ 1,773
Investments in available-for-sale securities (at fair value) 5,462 5,110
Investment in subsidiary, Bay State Federal Savings Bank 42,741 42,631
Investment in subsidiary, Bay State Funding Corp. 2,758 3,136
Accrued interest receivable 183 189
Deferred tax asset, net 444 799
. Other assets, net 282 205
Total assets 355,357 $53,843
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHCLDERS' EQUITY
Other liabilities $ 332 § 85
Stockholders' equity 55,025 53,758
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $55,357 $53,843
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BAY STATE BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(Dollars in Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Income:
Dividends from Bay State Federal Savings Bank $6,000 $3,999 $1,928
Other interest and dividend income 547 435 - 522
Total income 6,547 4,434 2,450
Expenses: '
Loss on sale of securities to subsidiary -- -- 280
Loss on sales of securities to third parties -- 400 -
Other expense 37 376 381
Total expenses 371 776 661
Income before income tax {benefit) expense and equity in
undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries 6,176 3,658 1,789
Income tax (benefit) expense 73 (121) (69)
Income before equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries 6,103 3,779 1,858
Equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries (461) (161) 713
“Net income 35,642 $3,618 $2,571
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BAY STATE BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(Dollars in Thousands)

2002 2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $5,642 $3,618 $2,571

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Earned compensation on stock-based incentive plan 349 420 432
Increase in taxes receivable -- (23) 29
Deferred tax expense 292 168 94
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets (77 40 3
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 247 60 (€28)
Loss on sales of securities to third parties -- 400 --
Loss on sale of securities to subsidiary - -- 280
Amortization of securities, net of accretion 6 6 6
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 6 (158) 62
Undistributed net (income) loss of subsidiaries 461 161 (713)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,926 4,692 2,669

Cash flows from investing activities:

Return of investment, Bay State Funding Corp. 515 415 --
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (200) (3,041) --
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities -- 3,334 2,216
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities -- -- 750
Net cash used in investing activities 315 708 2,966

Cash flows from financing activities:

Dividends paid on common stock (1,121) (830) (618)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 528 -- --
Purchases of treasury stock (4,934) (5,004) (8,800)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,527) (5,834) (9,418)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,714 (434) (3,783)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,773 2,207 5,990
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . $3.,487 $1,773 $2,207
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NOTE 22 - QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

BAY STATE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Year Ended March 31, 2002

Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Interest and dividend income $9,487 $9,532 $9,471 $9,559
Interest expense 3,704 4,181 4,773 5,076
Net interest and dividend income 5,783 5,351 4,698 4,483
Provision for loan losses 50 125 75 62
Net interest and dividend income after
provision for loan losses 5,733 5,226 4,623 4,421
Noninterest income 411 371 299 382
Noninterest expense 3,170 3,215 2,821 2,888
Income before income taxes 2,974 2,382 2,101 1,915
Provision for income taxes 1,203 959 826 749
Net income $1.771 $1.423 $1,275 1,166
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 116 $ 093 $ 079 $ 071
Assuming dilution $ 1.08 0.87 0.75 $ 0.68

Year Ended March 31, 2001
Fourth Third Second First

uarter uarter Quarter Quarter
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Interest and dividend income : : $9,631 $9,603 $9,225 $8,761
Interest expense 5,314 5,558 5,381 4,932
Net interest and dividend income 4,317 4,045 3,844 3,829
Provision for loan losses 85 60 150 165
Net interest and dividend income after
provision for loan losses 4,232 3,985 3,694 3,664
Noninterest income 186 44 411 192
Noninterest expense 2,568 2,534 2,739 2,626
Income before income taxes 1,850 1,495 1,366 1,230
Income tax expense 842 554 510 423
Net income 1,008 $ 941 3 856 $ 807
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 061 $ 0.55 0.48 $ 045
Assuming dilution 0.58 0.53 $ 047 0.45
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures.

None.
PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registramt.

The information relating to Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant is incorporated herein by
reference to the section captioned “Proposal 1-Election of Directors™ in the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on July 24, 2002. Reference is made to the cover page of this report and
to the section captioned “Section 16(a) Beneficial Cwnership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement for
information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information relating to Directors’ and executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to
the section captioned “Proposal 1-Election of Directors — Directors Compensation” and “Executive Compensation” in
the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on July 24, 2002.

Ttem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is
incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned “Stock Ownership” in the Registrant's Proxy Statement for
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on July 24, 2002.

Equity Compensation Plan Information:
Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to Weighted-average future issuance under
be issued upon exercise of exercise price of eguity compensation
outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding
warrants and rights warrants and rights securities reflected in

Plan category (a) (b) column {(a))

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders 225,248 $19.58 120,423

The Company does not maintain any equity compensation plans that have not been approved by security
holders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Tramsactions.

The information relating to certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated herein by
reference to the section captioned “Transactions with Management” in the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be heid on July 24, 2002.

45




Item 14. Exhibits, Financizl Statement Schedules and Reports cn Form 8-K.

()
(D

2)

)

(©)
3.1
3.2
4.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

The following documents are filed as a part of this report:
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are filed as a part of this
Form 10-K, under Item §.
- Independent Auditors’ Report
- Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002 and 2001
- Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
- Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended March 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000
- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Financial Statement Schedules
Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the
required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.
Reports on Form 8-K filed during the last quarter of fiscal 2002,
None.
Exhibits required by Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K:
Certificate of Incorporation of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. (1)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. (2)
Draft Stock Certificate of Bay State Bancorp, Inc. (1)
Employment Agreement between Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and John F. Murphy (3)
Employment Agreement between Bay State Federal Savings Bank and John F. Murphy (4)
Employment Agreement between Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and Denise M. Renaghan (3)
Employment Agreement between Bay State Federal Savings Bank and Denise M. Renaghan (4)
Change in Control Agreement between Bay State Bancorp, Inc. and Michael O. Gilles (4)
Change in Control Agreement between Bay State Federal Savings Bank and Michael O. Gilles (4)
Change in Control Agreement between Bay State Federal Savings Bank and Philip R. McNulty (4)
Form of Bay State Federal Savings Bank Management Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (1)
Form of Bay State Federal Savings Bank Retirement Benefit Equalization Plan (1)

10.10 Bay State Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Option Plan (5)

10.11
11.0

21.0
23.0

Bay State Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Stock-Based Incentive Plan (as amended and restated) (5)
Computation of earnings per share is incorporated herein by reference to Note 20 of the Financial
Statements

Subsidiary information is incorporated herein by reference to “Item 1. Business—General”

Consent of Shatswell, MacLeod & Company, P.C.

(1) Incorporated by reference into this document from the Exhibits to Form SB-2, Registration Statement,
and any amendments thereto, Registration No. 333-40115

(2) Incorporated by reference into this document from the Exhibits to Form 10-QSB as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 12, 1999.

(3) Incorporated by reference into this document from the Exhibits to Form 10-K or filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commissions on June 12, 2000.

(4) Incorporated by reference into this document from the Exhibits to Form 10-KSB as filed with the
Securities Exchange Commission on June 14, 1999.

(5) Incorporated by reference into this document from the Appendix to the Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on July 22, 1999, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 14, 1999,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BAY STATE BANCORP, INC.

By: /s/ John F. Murphy
John F. Murphy
President and Chief Executive Officer
Treasurer and Chairman of the Board

DATED: June 14, 2002
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ John F. Murphy President, Chief Executive Officer, June 14, 2002
John F. Murphy Treasurer and Chairman of the Board

(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Denise M. Renaghan Executive Vice President, Chief June 14, 2002
Denise M. Renaghan Operating Officer and Director
/s/ Michael Q. Gilles Chief Financial Officer June 14, 2002
Michael O. Gilles (Principal Accounting and

Financial Officer)

/s/ Robert B. Cleary Director June 14, 2002
Robert B. Cleary

/s/ Leo F. Grace Director June 14, 2002
Leo F. Grace
/s/ Richard F. Hughes Director June 14, 2002

Richard F. Hughes

/s/ Richard F. McBride Director June 14, 2002
Richard F. McBride

/s/ Xent T. Spellman Director June 14, 2002

Kent T. Spellman
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